
Health and Wellbeing Board
Date: Wednesday, 3 November 2021
Time: 2.00 p.m.
Venue: Floral Pavilion, New Brighton

Contact Officer: Dan Sharples
Tel: 0151 666 3791
e-mail: danielsharples@wirral.gov.uk
Website: http://www.wirral.gov.uk

AGENDA
1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS 

Members of the Board are asked whether they have any personal or 
prejudicial interests in connection with any application on the agenda 
and, if so, to declare them and state the nature of the interest.

3. MINUTES (Pages 1 - 8)

To approve the accuracy of the minutes of the meeting held on 29 
September 2021.

4. PUBLIC QUESTIONS/STATEMENTS AND PETITIONS 

Public Questions

Notice of question to be given in writing or by email by 12 noon, Friday 
29 October to the Council’s Monitoring Officer 
(committeeservices@wirral.gov.uk) and to be dealt with in accordance 
with Standing Order 10. For more information on how your personal 
information will be used, please see this link: Document Data 
Protection Protocol for Public Speakers at Committees | Wirral Council

Statements and Petitions

Public Document Pack

https://democracy.wirral.gov.uk/ecSDDisplay.aspx?NAME=Data%20Protection%20Protocol%20for%20Public%20Speakers%20at%20Co&ID=1298&RPID=517238898
https://democracy.wirral.gov.uk/ecSDDisplay.aspx?NAME=Data%20Protection%20Protocol%20for%20Public%20Speakers%20at%20Co&ID=1298&RPID=517238898


Statements 

Notice of representations to be given in writing or by email by 12 noon, 
Friday 29 October to the Council’s Monitoring Officer 
(committeeservices@wirral.gov.uk) and to be dealt with in accordance 
with Standing Order 11. 

Petitions 

Petitions may be presented to the Committee. The person presenting 
the petition will be allowed to address the meeting briefly (not 
exceeding one minute) to outline the aims of the petition. The Chair will 
refer the matter to another appropriate body of the Council within 
whose terms of reference it falls without discussion, unless a relevant 
item appears elsewhere on the Agenda. Please give notice of petitions 
to committeeservices@wirral.gov.uk in advance of the meeting.

Questions by Members

Questions by Members to be dealt with in accordance with Standing 
Orders 12.3 to 12.8.

5. DEVELOPING A WIRRAL HEALTH AND WELLBEING STRATEGY 
WITH SUPPORT FROM THE MARMOT COMMUNITY PROGRAMME 
(Pages 9 - 14)

6. COMMUNITY SAFETY STRATEGY 2021-2026 (Pages 15 - 40)

7. HEALTH AND EMPLOYMENT (Pages 41 - 58)

8. INTEGRATED CARE SYSTEM PROJECT UPDATE (Pages 59 - 72)

9. WORK PROGRAMME (Pages 73 - 78)



The principal role of the Health and Wellbeing Board is to discharge 
functions pursuant to sections 195 and 196 of the Health and Social 
Care Act 2012.

The Health and Wellbeing Board will not be responsible for directly 
commissioning services, but will provide oversight, strategic direction 
and coordination of the following activities:

(a) To develop a shared understanding of the needs of the local 
community through the development of an agreed Joint Strategic 
Needs Assessment

(b) To seek to meet those needs through leading on the ongoing 
development of a Health & Wellbeing Strategy

(c) To provide a local governance structure for local planning and 
accountability of health and wellbeing related outcomes

(d) To work with HealthWatch in Wirral to ensure appropriate 
engagement and involvement within existing patient and service 
user involvement groups takes place

(e) To drive a collaborative approach to commissioning of improved 
health and care services which improve the health and wellbeing 
of local people

(f) To consider and take advantage of opportunities to more closely 
integrate health and social care services in commissioning and 
provision

(g) To review the financial and organisational implications of joint and 
integrated working across health and social care services, 
ensuring that performance and quality standards of health and 
social care services are met, and represent value for money 
across the whole system

(h) To establish a key forum for local democratic accountability 
relating to commissioning against agreed health outcomes

(i) To develop and update the Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment 
(PNA)

(j) To ensure the Better Care Fund plan is monitored regarding its 
progress and performance and ensure the health and social care 
partners effectively plan regarding the implications of this work.



This page is intentionally left blank



HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD
Wednesday, 29 September 2021

Present:

Councillor Yvonne Nolan
Councillor Tom Anderson
Councillor Phil Gilchrist
Councillor Wendy Clements
Paul Satoor
Graham Hodkinson
Simone White
Julie Webster
Dr Paula Cowan

Louise Healey
Mark Thomas
Tony Bennett (in place of Karen 
Howell)
Matthew Swanborough (in place of 
Janelle Holme)

Chair
Wirral Council
Wirral Council
Wirral Council
Chief Executive
Director of Care and Health
Director of Children, Families and Education
Director of Public Health
Chair, NHS Wirral Clinical Commissioning 
Group
JobCentre Plus
Merseyside Fire & Rescue Service
Wirral Community NHS Foundation Trust

Wirral University Teaching Hospital NHS 
Foundation Trust

21 DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS 

Members were asked to consider whether they had any disclosable pecuniary 
interests and/or any other relevant interest in connection with any item(s) on this 
agenda and, if so, to declare them and state what they were.
 
No declarations were made.

22 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

Apologies for absence were received from Simon Banks, Alan Evans, Liz Bishop, 
Sue Higginson, Supt Martin Earl, Sir David Henshaw, Michael Brown, Karen Howell, 
Janelle Holmes, Karen Prior, Abel Adegoke, Sheena Cumiskey and Councillor 
Janette Williamson

23 MINUTES 

Resolved – That the accuracy of the minutes of the meeting held on 20 July 
2021 be agreed.

24 PUBLIC AND MEMBER QUESTIONS 

The Chair outlined that a number of public questions had been submitted to the 
Board, but that they were not within the scope of the Board’s Terms of Reference. It 
was reported that no further questions from either members of the public or Members 
had been submitted, nor were there any statements or petitions to receive.

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



25 FORMATION OF THE COMMUNITY, VOLUNTARY AND FAITH SECTOR 
REFERENCE GROUP 

The Chair of the Community, Voluntary and Faith (CVF) Sector Reference Group 
introduced the report which detailed the work of the Reference Group and sought to 
establish a working relationship with the Health and Wellbeing Board. The report 
detailed the background to the establishment of the reference group and the overall 
aim of the group and its relationship with the Health and Wellbeing Board.

The Board was advised of the vital role the CVF sector played in a progressive health 
and care system and highlighted the need for the sector to be aligned to the 
governance arrangements as part of the Integrated Care System and embedded 
within how the system operated. It was further reported that there was a need to 
strengthen communities through developing community assets and harnessing the 
skills of those in the sector, which would build upon the work of the humanitarian cell. 
Organisations around the table were encouraged to develop community-based 
approaches to utilise the extensive knowledge, expertise, and experience in 
communities on how services can support local residents.

Members across the Board expressed their thanks to the community groups involved 
in bringing the work together, as well as thanks to the sector as a whole for the work 
it had undertaken during the Covid-19 response and recognised the vital role the 
sector would play in developing future working arrangements. It was queried how the 
change in the way of working could take place, where it was acknowledged that 
working alongside local people would enable a change in how services were 
delivered and allow residents to access those wider community services when 
required.

Resolved – That

(1) the establishment of a Community, Voluntary and Faith Sector 
Reference Group be noted.

(2) the development of a progressive and effective working partnership 
with the Community, Voluntary and Faith sector through the Reference 
Group be supported.

(3) the principal aim of the Reference Group be supported to build and 
support the development of local infrastructure, in support of ongoing 
programmes and plans to meet the health and wellbeing needs of 
Wirral’s communities and residents.

(4) the secondary aim of the Reference Group, to work in full partnership to 
bring forward the opportunities and benefits for communities and 
residents arising from Government programmes and new legislation be 
supported.

(5) the use of all available data sources by the Reference Group to inform 
its contribution to plans and programmes be supported.

26 WORKING WITH THE COMMUNITY, VOLUNTARY AND FAITH SECTOR: 
UPDATE REPORT 

Page 2



The Director of Public Health introduced the report which provided an update on the 
approach to working with the Community, Voluntary and Faith (CVF) sector to 
improve health and reduce inequalities. The Health and Wellbeing Board endorsed 
the proposed approach at its meeting on 31 March 2021 and the report provided a 
further update on the work being undertaken.

Representatives of the CVF sector were in attendance and provided an update on 
the ongoing work. It was reported that the project was driven out of the work of the 
humanitarian cell which was set up in response to Covid-19, and that there was a 
desire to continue to build on that work. Conferences had been held which involved 
over 100 organisations in the sector, and during those conferences the sector had 
identified five key areas for development with task and finish groups being 
established to take each area forward. These were:

 Increasing collaboration
 Community, Voluntary and Faith Sector representation
 Modernising volunteering
 Behaviours that reflect values
 Tackling health inequalities

The work coming out of these five key areas included working towards a single 
mechanism for communications, improving collaboration in decision making bodies 
across the sector and partner organisations and encouraging residents who may not 
have considered volunteering beforehand to do so through progressing the already 
modernising ways of working.

It was felt across the Board that the pandemic had highlighted the important role of 
the CVF sector in Wirral and members acknowledged the need for continued close 
working with the sector, particularly in the context of the proposed introduction of the 
Integrated Care System and the wider determinants of health such as regeneration.

Resolved – That the report be noted and the ongoing work programme be 
endorsed.

27 HEALTHWATCH WIRRAL UPDATE 

The Chair informed the Board that the Chief Executive Officer of Healthwatch was 
unwell and had therefore passed apologies and sought the views of the Board on 
whether to defer the item. Members continued with a discussion on the information 
contained within the report which included feedback from health and care users on 
the quality of service. It was noted that a significant element of the report pertained to 
access to General Practitioner services which the Partnerships Committee had 
recently looked at, and that the primary themes from the report could be linked into 
that work. It was reported that from January to June 2021 there were 791,000 GP 
appointments in Wirral and it was queried whether this had increased. In response, it 
was noted that the overall number had increased, but this could be down to the new 
ways of accessing GP services. Representatives of health providers undertook to 
take on board the key outcomes from the report.

Page 3



It was moved by Councillor Yvonne Nolan, seconded by Councillor Wendy Clements, 
that the Board places on record its appreciation to Healthwatch colleagues for 
providing the report. The motion was put and agreed by assent. It was therefore – 

Resolved – That

(1) the report be noted.

(2) the Board’s appreciation for the report be fed back to Healthwatch.

28 PUBLIC HEALTH ANNUAL REPORT 

The Director of Public Health introduced the report, which provided the Board with 
the independent annual report of the Director of Public Health. The 2020/2021 Report 
described enduring health inequalities in Wirral, the immediate impact of the COVID-
19 pandemic on these differences in health outcomes and recommended actions that 
were needed to improve residents’ health. 

The report detailed how Wirral became one of the first places in the world to respond 
to Covid-19 when British residents repatriated from Wuhan, China were hosted in 
Wirral. Since then, it was reported that Covid-19 had affected everyone in the 
borough but that the pandemic had highlighted the existing health, economic and 
social inequalities within Wirral. The detail of the health inequalities people in Wirral 
faced was outlined, including the difference in life expectancy based on geographical 
location and gender. Comparisons to national statistics in a range of health factors 
were also outlined to the Board, with issues such as fuel poverty, alcohol misuse and 
prevalence of depression all worse in Wirral than the national average.

The report presented five key recommendations that had been made to improve the 
health and wellbeing of residents and reduce health inequalities in Wirral and these 
were outlined to the Board. They included:

 Prioritise economic regeneration and a strong local economy;
 Safeguard a healthy standard of living for all;
 Increase support for children, young people and families;
 Strengthen action to address differences in health outcomes and prevention; 

and
 Residents and partners continue to work together. 

The Board welcomed the report and the recommendations included within it. There 
was acknowledgement across Council directorates and the organisations 
represented on the Board that the report detailed the shared priorities. The 
importance of embedding the recommendations detailed in the report into the work 
that was ongoing was highlighted.

Resolved – That the recommendations detailed within the Public Health Annual 
Report be endorsed.

29 WIRRAL PHARMACEUTICAL NEEDS ASSESSMENT (PNA) 2022 – 2025 

The Director of Public Health introduced the report which detailed the proposed 
process to produce a new Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment for Wirral. The Health 

Page 4



and Wellbeing Board had the responsibility for the publication and updating of the 
local Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment. The process for producing a new 
Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment for Wirral began in Spring 2020 with a view to its 
publication in March 2021. However, due to the COVID-19 pandemic the publication 
date was put back to September 2022 as per national direction. The Director of 
Public Health informed the Board that their endorsement was sought to enable the 
necessary action to produce the assessment.

Resolved – That

(1) the Director of Public Health be requested to undertake the necessary 
steps to produce the next Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment on or 
before 30th September 2022.

(2) the Director of Public Health be requested to produce a further report 
with the final draft Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment for sign-off prior 
to public consultation.

(3) the Director of Public Health be requested to produce a final report in 
September 2022 prior to publication of the Pharmaceutical Needs 
Assessment.

30 INTEGRATED CARE SYSTEM DEVELOPMENTS 

The Director of Care and Health introduced the report which provided an update on 
the legislative changes that would lead to the establishment of the Cheshire and 
Merseyside Integrated Care Board and set out the updated policy context for the 
development of Integrated Care Systems and Integrated Care Partnerships and 
provides an update on the local governance arrangements, and developments for 
Wirral’s Integrated Care Partnership at “place” level. The importance of the role of the 
Health and Wellbeing Board in providing oversight of the place-based partnership 
arrangements was set out, which had been reinforced during the meeting through the 
collaborative work with the Community, Voluntary and Faith Sector and the 
importance of tackling health inequalities as highlighted in the Public Health Annual 
Report.

The report set out the various place-based governance arrangements that had been 
considered and detailed the workshop session that had taken place with elected 
members on 14 September 2021 to discuss these options. It was reported that a 
further system wide governance workshop was planned for 8 October 2021 to further 
develop these arrangements, with the proposals to then be brought back through the 
Adult Social Care and Public Health Committee.

It was felt by colleagues across the Board that the system as a whole in Wirral had 
come together strongly. The issue of how resources would be allocated was raised 
and it was felt that the more collaboration that took place across the organisations 
the greater the case Wirral as a place had for increased delegation. The importance 
of clinical involvement in the developing governance arrangements was highlighted.

Resolved – That 

Page 5



(1) the legislative developments detailed in the Health and Care Bill that will 
lead to the establishment of the Cheshire and Merseyside Integrated 
Care Board (ICB).

(2) the preferred model of place-based partnership governance 
arrangements that would be discussed further at the Adult Social Care 
and Public Health Committee on 13th October 2021, to develop a Joint 
Committee between the Council and the Cheshire and Merseyside 
Integrated Care Board, in which decision making at place level will be 
jointly carried out in partnership with ICB, local NHS Partners and the 
Council, be noted.

(3) regular reports relating to the developments of the Integrated Care 
Board and Integrated Care Partnership at system level, and local place-
based partnership arrangements for Wirral be received.

(4) the Board provides an oversight role in shaping local services through 
setting the vision, priorities and outcomes for population health and 
wellbeing in collaboration with Wirral’s place based partnership.

31 SECTION 75 AGREEMENT 

The Director of Care and Health introduced the report which outlined the proposal in 
relation to the continuation of the pooled fund arrangement and s75 Agreement 
between the Council and Wirral Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) for 2021/22. 
The report described the proposed arrangements, key principles, content, and value 
of the 2021/2022 Section 75 and set out the additional funding that the CCG would 
contribute to the pool. It was outlined to the Board that the role of the Health and 
Wellbeing Board was in relation to agreeing how the Better Care Fund was used to 
support health and care outcomes across the borough, and that the overall section 
75 agreement would be considered by the Adult Social Care and Public Health 
Committee to agree the Council’s contribution.

Resolved – That

(1) the proposal in relation to which a decision will be made by the Adult 
Social Care and Public Health Committee to continue the pooled fund 
arrangement and s75 Agreement between the Council and Wirral 
Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) for 2021/22 be noted.

(2) the commissioning pool value of £235m for 2021/22 and the additional 
funding the CCG would contribute as detailed in Appendix 1 to the 
report be noted.

(3) it be noted that the proposal that the key principles as set out in the 
pooled fund agreement 2020/2021 be incorporated into the pooled fund 
agreement 2021/22, including the risk share agreement.

(4) it be noted that the shared risk arrangements were limited to the Better 
Care Fund (BCF) arrangements only, which was currently reporting a 
break-even position.

Page 6



32 WORK PROGRAMME 

The Head of Legal Services introduced the report of the Director of Law and 
Governance which provided the Board with its current work programme and gave 
opportunity to propose additional items for consideration at future meetings.

A discussion was had on the restoration and development of NHS services after 
Covid-19, where it was reported that a recovery programme was underway to 
address the backlog in elective surgery notwithstanding the current increased 
demand on services, and that it was hoped a fuller update would be brought to the 
December meeting of the Board. It was proposed that a report on early years and 
health as well as a report from young people with Special Education Needs and 
Disabilities be added to the work programme, with the possibility of young people 
attending a meeting to speak to Board members.

Resolved – That

(1) The work programme be noted.

(2) a report on Health and Early Years be added to the work programme.

(3) a report from Young People with Special Education Needs and 
Disabilities be added to the work programme. 

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



1

WIRRAL HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD
3rd November 2021

REPORT TITLE: DEVELOPING A WIRRAL HEALTH AND WELLBEING 
STRATEGY WITH SUPPORT FROM THE MARMOT 
COMMUNITY PROGRAMME

REPORT OF: DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC HEALTH

REPORT SUMMARY

The Cheshire and Merseyside Health and Care Partnership and Directors of Public 
Health are working in partnership with the Institute of Health Equity, University 
College London to deliver an ambitious ‘Marmot Community’ programme to 
systematically reduce health inequalities through action on the social determinants of 
health. Marmot’s Fair Society, Healthy Lives Report 2010 sets out actions to improve 
health and reduce health inequalities. 

The Marmot Community Programme is a collectively delivered by different 
organisations (local authority, NHS, community and voluntary groups, businesses, 
colleges, universities and citizens) to reduce inequalities in the causes of the causes 
of ill-health such as unemployment, poverty and poor housing.

This Report has informed the 2021 Public Health Annual Report: embracing 
Optimism: Living with COVID-19 which was presented to the September meeting of 
the board.

This report sets out proposals for a workshop led by the Marmot team and ensure 
that work already in progress is acknowledged and aligned to produce a Wirral 
Health and Wellbeing Strategy.  A working group will be developed following the 
workshop and participants will be invited to join the group, given the collective action 
needed to develop the programme. 

This matter affects all Wards within the Borough; it is not a key decision.

RECOMMENDATION/S

The Health & Wellbeing Board is recommended to:

(1) Request that a workshop be arranged in November 2021 to be held in Wirral and 
delivered by the Marmot team, to support the development of Wirral’s place plans in 
line with the identified strategic and local priorities and key drivers to address post-
Covid-19 inequalities as outlined in the 2021 Public Health Annual Report and Wirral 
Plan.

Page 9

Agenda Item 5



2

(2) Establish a working group with representation from partners to take forward the 
recommendations of the 2021 Public Health Annual Report and findings from the 
Marmot workshop and final report to produce a local Health and Wellbeing Strategy.  

Page 10



3

SUPPORTING INFORMATION

1.0 REASON/S FOR RECOMMENDATION/S

1.1 As we emerge from the COVID-19 pandemic, there is a need to build an inclusive 
economy that puts the achievement of improved health and wellbeing and health 
equity at the heart of our planning.  The 2021 Public Health Annual Report detailed 
the challenges facing the borough and action needed to tackle health inequalities. 
The work with the Marmot team will support the implementation of the 
recommendations in the 2021 Public Health Annual Report. 

1.2 The Marmot Community programme is collectively delivered by different 
organisations (local authority, NHS, community and voluntary groups, businesses, 
colleges, universities and citizens) to reduce inequalities in the causes of the causes 
of ill-health such as unemployment, poverty and poor housing.

1.3 A Cheshire and Merseyside Marmot Task and Finish Group has been formed to 
engage with local councils in developing a system-wide approach to improve 
population health and address inequalities in the social determinants of health 
across Cheshire and Merseyside building on local work.  

2.0 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED

2.1 Do not run a workshop and do not form a working group.  

3.0 BACKGROUND INFORMATION

3.1 The Cheshire & Merseyside Health Care Partnership is working to achieve Marmot 
Community status.  Other cities and areas that are already Marmot Communities or 
aim to be soon include the city of Coventry and Greater Manchester.  

3.2 The underlying feature of all Marmot Communities is a determined and joint effort 
across sectors to undertake collaborative action and achieve six common goals, as 
set out in Sir Michael’s original report from 2010:

 Give every child the best start in life
 Enable all children, young people, and adults to maximise their capabilities and 

have control over their lives
 Create fair employment and good work for all
 Ensure healthy standard of living for all
 Create and develop healthy and sustainable places and communities
 Strengthen the role and impact of ill health prevention.

3.2 Areas that are awarded the status of Marmot Community are those that can provide 
evidence that these six goals are addressed through local policy and decision-
making, and that improved health and reduced inequalities are at the centre of how 

Page 11



4

the area develops approaches to early years, education and skills, transport, 
housing, places and spaces, and jobs and businesses.

3.3 There are several plans already in Wirral that create the foundation for this work:  

3.31 Wirral Plan 2021-2026 
The Wirral Plan puts tackling inequalities at its core and sets out the strategic vision 
and key priorities for the borough.  A Health Inequalities strategy will be developed, 
informed by local data, and underpinned by Marmot principles.  The strategy will aim 
to address the wider determinants of health using a Health in All Policies1 approach.  
Action on health inequalities requires improving the lives of those with the worst 
health outcomes, fastest.

3.32 The Local Plan 
The Local Plan enables opportunities to address inequalities arising from 
employment, affordable and quality housing, and the wider lived environment where 
people can aspire, thrive and become more personally resilient.

3.33 Wirral’s Integrated Care Partnership (ICP) 
The ICP is tasked with developing an ‘integrated care strategy’ to address the health 
and social care needs of local people.

In 2021, the Chief Executive Officer Integrated Care Partnership Development Group 
was established in which Chief Officers from Wirral Council, NHS Wirral CCG, Wirral 
Community Health and Care NHS Foundation Trust, Wirral University Teaching 
Hospital NHS Foundation Trust, and Cheshire and Wirral Partnership NHS 
Foundation Trust work together to develop the strategic ICP at place level.  The 
Health and Wellbeing Board has a key role in the development, governance and 
oversight of the place-based partnership arrangements and activities.  

3.34 Public Health Annual Report (PHAR)
The 2020/2021 Public Health Annual Report, the first since the Covid-19 pandemic, 
looks at the health of the Wirral population, how the pandemic has impacted our 
community’s health and wellbeing and sets out the things that we all must do to 
Keep Wirral Well.  Informed by local epidemiology and intelligence the report 
presents the opportunities to reduce the gap in health between our communities and 
the rest of England by acting together and at pace. The recommendations in this 
report are significant to improving economic, social and health outcomes of our local 
population.  

3.4 The Marmot national team is looking to gain feedback from Merseyside and 
Cheshire to ensure local perspectives and local voices are incorporated into a 
national review report due to be published in 2022. This feedback will be provided by 
individual local area workshops including the one proposed for Wirral.  

3.5 A working group will be developed following the workshop. Workshop participants 
will be invited to be part of the working group given the collective action needed to 
address the causes of inequality.  The role of the working group is to shape the 

1 https://www.local.gov.uk/sites/default/files/documents/health-all-policies-hiap--8df.pdf 

Page 12

https://www.local.gov.uk/sites/default/files/documents/health-all-policies-hiap--8df.pdf


5

Health and Wellbeing Strategy in line with the recommendations in the 2021 Public 
Health Annual Report.

3.6 A final report from the Marmot Team will be made available by the 31st March 2022 
and will make a series of recommendations, which will both inform local plans and a 
strategic 5 -10-year Cheshire and Merseyside programme.  

4.0 CONCLUSION 

Health and Wellbeing Board partners play a crucial role as system leaders to enable 
change in our communities to tackle health inequalities.   Hosting a workshop in 
Wirral will enable key challenges as well as work areas to be identified to inform the 
development of a local Health and Wellbeing Strategy.

5.0     FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

5.1 The workshop will be held virtually, via MS Teams. The Cheshire and Merseyside 
Public Health Network will organise the meeting which the Marmot Team will chair. 
There is no cost to the workshop, other than participant’s time. 

6.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

6.1 There are no legal implications arising from this report. 

7.0 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: STAFFING, ICT AND ASSETS

7.1 This report and work referenced within it has been developed by Public Health. 
There is no cost to the workshop, other than participant’s time. No additional 
resources are sought. 

8.0 RELEVANT RISKS 

8.1 Any risks related to the programme will be identified in the final report produced by 
the Marmot Team.

9.0 ENGAGEMENT/CONSULTATION 

9.1 No public engagement or consultation has been undertaken in relation to this report.  

10.0 EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS

10.1 An Equality Impact Assessment is not required at this stage.  However, it is important 
to note that working with the Marmot Team will support Wirral’s strategic aims of 
tackling health inequalities by using qualitative and quantitative evidence to produce 
an action plan to address inequalities in the social determinants of health.  These 
approaches will have a positive impact on a number of protected characteristic 
groups as well as those living in our more deprived communities.

11.0 ENVIRONMENT AND CLIMATE IMPLICATIONS

Page 13



6

11.1 Our local environment is an important influence on health behaviours.  Addressing 
the social determinants of health, the conditions in which people are born, grow, live, 
work and age can impact on health inequalities.  Health inequalities are largely 
preventable.  Not only is there a strong social justice case for addressing health 
inequalities there is also a pressing economic case.  It is estimated that the annual 
cost of health inequalities is between £36 billion to £40 billion through lost taxes, 
welfare payments and costs to the NHS.  Action on health inequalities requires 
action across all the social determinants of health, including education, occupation, 
income, home and community.

12.0 COMMUNITY WEALTH IMPLICATIONS

12.1 The workshop will discuss the idea of ‘community resourcefulness’, an approach 
developed through work so far which shows the importance of building community 
resourcefulness in improving health and social and economic outcomes and 
reducing inequalities between areas.  Public Health England have stated, 
‘community-centred approaches are increasingly used in public health practice to 
enhance individual and community capabilities, create healthier places and reduce 
health inequalities’2.  The shift to community-centred strategies goes alongside 
actively involving local populations in the design and implementation of programmes 
to support outcomes.  Such coproduced interventions improve effectiveness and 
outcomes in communities, particularly those in the poorest areas whose views and 
understandings of their experiences are not often taken into account.

REPORT AUTHOR: Julie Webster
Director of Public Health  
email: juliewebster@wirral.gov.uk

APPENDICES

N/A

BACKGROUND PAPERS
Marmot Review report – 'Fair Society, Healthy Lives | Local Government Association

SUBJECT HISTORY (last 3 years)
Council Meeting Date
Health and Wellbeing Board
2021 Public Health Annual Report: Embracing 
Optimism – Living with COVID-19

29th September 2021

2 Public Health England (2020) Community-centred public health Taking a whole system approach. Available from: 
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/857029/WSA_Briefing.pdf

Page 14

https://www.local.gov.uk/marmot-review-report-fair-society-healthy-lives


HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD
Wednesday, 3 November 2021

REPORT TITLE: COMMUNITY SAFETY STRATEGY 2021-2026
REPORT OF: DIRECTOR OF NEIGHBOURHOOD SERVICES

REPORT SUMMARY

It is a statutory responsibility under the Crime and Disorder Reduction Act 1998 for Councils 
to lead on the production of a coherent Crime and Disorder Reduction Strategy (Community 
Safety Strategy).

This report introduces the Community Safety Strategy 2021-2026 (Appendix 1 attached) 
which has been co-produced following significant consultation with a wide range of 
stakeholders.

Keeping our communities free from crime and anti-social behaviour is a key priority for the 
Council and community Safety is a key component of Safe and Pleasant Communities one 
of five key themes of the wider Wirral Plan 2021-2026. The Wirral Community Safety 
Strategy 2021-2026 and the work of the Safer Wirral Partnership Board has one key 
objective - to make Wirral a safe place to live, work and visit. 

The Community Safety Strategy 2021-2026 has been presented to and approved by the 
Tourism, Communities, Culture and Leisure Committee (14 July 2021) and by Full Council 
(6 September 2021). 

RECOMMENDATIONS

The Health & Wellbeing Board is recommended to;

1) Note the co-produced Crime and Disorder Reduction Strategy (Community Safety 
Strategy 2021-2026).

2) Consider how the strategy and its outcomes can be supported by the work undertaken 
by the Health & Wellbeing Board in the protection of some of the most vulnerable 
individuals in Wirral’s communities and also in enabling improvements in population 
health.

3) Request that the Assistant Director Neighbourhoods, Safety and Transport be requested 
to provide regular updates (at least annually) to the Health and Wellbeing Board on the 
progress made in respect to the delivery of the Crime and Disorder Reduction Strategy 
(Community Safety Strategy).

Page 15

Agenda Item 6



Page 16



SUPPORTING INFORMATION

1.0 REASON/S FOR RECOMMENDATION/S

1.1 It is a statutory requirement for the Council to produce a Community Safety Strategy. 
Our Community Safety Strategy 2021-2026 is a critical over-arching document in 
Wirral’s drive to improve the safety and perceptions of safety for our residents, 
businesses and visitors.

1.2 The strategy not only sets out the governance structure for the Safer Wirral 
Partnership Board but also clearly articulates the ten key priority themes which were 
articulated through the stakeholder engagement process.  

2.0 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED

2.1 There were no other options considered as it is a statutory requirement to produce a 
Community Safety Strategy.

3.0 BACKGROUND INFORMATION

3.1 The strategy has been co-produced in concert with elected members, victims of 
crime and other key statutory and voluntary sector agencies.

3.2 Five on-line workshops were held to outline the scope of the document, take views 
on priorities, both local and Wirral-wide and to shape the new direction of travel for 
this significant piece of work.

3.3 The ten priority themes are ASB, Violent Crime, Domestic Abuse, Drugs and 
Alcohol, Hate Crime, Modern Slavery, Prevent, Road Safety, Emergency Planning 
and Coastal and Inland Water Safety.

3.4 Each of the themes outlined above in 3.3 will be under-pinned by a detailed Action 
Plan which will focus on operational delivery, driven by partnership working and clear 
realistic outcomes.

4.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

4.1 The Community Safety Strategy will be delivered within existing budgets and will 
maximise grant and other income opportunities where they arise.

5.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

5.1 It is a statutory responsibility under the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 for Councils to 
lead on the production of a coherent Community Safety Strategy.

5.2 The delivery of this strategy and its accompanying thematic action plans will be over- 
seen by the Safer Wirral Partnership Board.

6.0 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: STAFFING, ICT AND ASSETS

Page 17



6.1 There are no specific resource implications arising as a direct result of the strategy.

7.0 RELEVANT RISKS 

7.1 All of the ten thematic priorities will be accompanied by their own programme 
specific risk register.

7.2 There is a risk of partner organisations being unable to fulfil the high standards set 
out in the strategy. This is mitigated by the robust governance and meetings 
structure which is hallmark of all community safety work both in Wirral and across 
the region.

7.3 Furthermore, it is anticipated that the strengthened partnership relationships 
developed during the course of the Covid pandemic will continue and provide a 
fruitful base, from which to deliver an outstanding community safety programme of 
interventions.

8.0 ENGAGEMENT/CONSULTATION 

8.1 The strategy has been written and co-produced, working alongside Elected Members 
and all key partners via an extensive workshop programme. It has also taken on- 
board, comments from wider community consultations carried out via specific 
projects such as, Safer Streets and Cradle to Career.

9.0 EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS

9.1 Wirral Council has a legal requirement to make sure its policies and the way it carries 
out its work, does not discriminate against anyone. An Equality Impact Assessment 
is a tool to help council services identify steps they can take to ensure equality for 
anyone who might be affected by a particular policy, decision or activity.

10.0 ENVIRONMENT AND CLIMATE IMPLICATIONS

10.1 The Safer Wirral Partnership Board will be cognisant of the need for all delivery to 
take account of the Council’s declaration of a Climate emergency.

11.0 COMMUNITY WEALTH IMPLICATIONS

11.1 Community Wealth is at the heart of the Community Safety Strategy, its core 
purpose being to support community development, resilience and safety. Activity 
under the ten themes shows the work concentrated in the areas of greatest need. 
Examples include Safer Streets installing alleygates, CCTV cameras, new street 
lighting, door and window locks, clean ups and ‘greening’ of alleyways. As well as 
the physical improvements, the strategy also focuses on people, their health and 
well-being, working in schools and across the community to raise awareness of the 
dangers/consequences of certain behaviours and provides support and strategies to 
change those behaviours.

Commented [SD1]:  What Wirral Council mean by 
Community Wealth?
Wirral wants an economy that benefits all of our residents and 
one which keeps money within Wirral; a prosperous, inclusive 
economy where local people can get good jobs and achieve 
their aspirations. We want to ensure that much more wealth is 
invested and stays within our Borough. We know that Wirral 
has some stark economic, social and health inequalities. Our 
Community Wealth Building Strategy is a key part of how we 
will tackle this and makes a major contribution to improving the 
economic, social and health outcomes of the borough.

Examples of CWB and Social Value activity 
Local Employment – creation of local employment and 
training opportunities
Maximising the Wirral Pound – buying locally where possible 
to reduce unemployment and raise local skills 
Community development - development of resilient local 
community and community support organisations, especially 
in those areas and communities with the greatest need
Good Employer - support for staff development and welfare 
within providers’ own organisations and within their supply 
chain 
Green and Sustainable: protecting the environment, 
minimising waste and energy consumption and using other 
resources efficiently, within providers’ own organisations and 
within their supply chain     

Page 18



Additionally, the commissioned services aligned to the strategy encourages local 
providers to bid/quote for monies and this is evidenced by all monies being spent 
within Wirral/Merseyside, helping create and sustain local employment.

REPORT AUTHOR: Mark Camborne
S Assistant Director Neighbourhoods, Safety & Transport.

telephone:  Tel: 0151 606 2071
email:  markcamborne@wirral.gov.uk

APPENDICES

Appendix 1 Community Safety Strategy 2021-2026
Appendix 2
Appendix 3

BACKGROUND PAPERS

Domestic Abuse Strategy
Community Safety Strategy 2016-2020

SUBJECT HISTORY (last 3 years)
Council Meeting Date
Partnerships Committee

Tourism, Communities, Culture and Leisure 
Committee

Full Council

9 November 2020

14 July 2021

6 September 2021

Commented [SD2]:  Only one appendix included

Page 19



This page is intentionally left blank



WIRRAL 
COMMUNITY 
SAFETY 
STRATEGY

Anti-Social Behaviour

Violent Crime

Domestic Abuse

Drugs and Alcohol

Hate Crime

Modern Slavery

Prevent

Road Safety

Emergency Planning

Coastal and Inland Water Safety

2021-2026

Page 21



CONTENTS

WIRRAL COMMUNITY SAFETY STRATEGY 2021-2026

INTRODUCTION

DEVELOPING A SAFER WIRRAL

PRINCIPLES OF STRATEGY

CROSS-CUTTING ISSUES

SAFER WIRRAL PARTNERSHIP BOARD PRIORITIES

PRIORITY THEMES

ANTI-SOCIAL BEHAVIOUR

VIOLENT CRIME

DOMESTIC ABUSE

DRUGS AND ALCOHOL

HATE CRIME

MODERN SLAVERY

PREVENT

ROAD SAFETY

EMERGENCY PLANNING

COASTAL AND INLAND WATER SAFETY

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

Page 22



INTRODUCTION

WIRRAL COMMUNITY SAFETY STRATEGY 2021-2026

As required by the Crime and Disorder Act 
1998, Wirral Council and Merseyside Police 
have worked together with key partners and 
organisations to develop and implement local 
crime reduction strategies. In developing 
such strategies, partners must identify key 
local crime and disorder priorities through 
consultation and by analysing crime levels 
and patterns in the area. Wirral Council came 
together with Merseyside Police, Mersey Fire 
and Rescue Service (MFRS), Public Health, 
voluntary/community sector organisations 
and housing providers, to form The Safer 
Wirral Partnership Board (SWPB).

Community Safety is one of five key themes of the wider 
Wirral Plan 2021-2026 and the Wirral Community 
Safety Strategy and the work of the SWPB has one key 
objective - to make Wirral a safe place to live, work
and visit.

The previous chair of the Tourism, Communities, Culture 
and Leisure Committee was keen to ensure that we
co-produced this strategy, holding five separate
on-line workshop sessions with key stakeholders, 
crime prevention organisations and elected members. 
The workshops led to the development of ten Priority 
Themes, with an action plan for each. The strategy will 
be taken to the Tourism, Communities, Culture and 
Leisure Committee and then, to Full Council
for approval.

This strategy sets out the priorities for the next five 
years and I am honoured to have been a part of the 
strategy development, confident that it will have a 
lasting, positive impact on communities across Wirral.

Cllr Helen Cameron
Chair of Tourism, Communities,
Culture and Leisure Committee

Page 23



DEVELOPING A 
SAFER WIRRAL

WIRRAL COMMUNITY SAFETY STRATEGY 2021-2026

Funding from the Home Office, the Police and Crime 
Commissioner and the Violence Reduction Partnership 
are helping to keep Wirral safe. Projects include 
upgrades to CCTV cameras and software, a new 
improved Emergency Control Room, Safer Streets in 
North Birkenhead which has installed new alleygates, 
new street lighting, CCTV and home security.

In line with the government target to reduce 
neighbourhood crime by 20% we will continue to work 
with colleagues from the National Probation Service and 
Merseyside Police to support their Integrated Offender 
Management refresh strategy.

Across Wirral, a range of projects working with early 
years, young people and adults have been developed 
to help them better understand behaviours and 
consequences, to prepare them better for the challenges 
that life will inevitably bring.

Recognising the role community safety plays in 
safeguarding and making Wirral safer for children and 
young people, this strategy has been developed with 
the support of safeguarding partners. Delivery around 
this strategy will seek to coordinate with relevant 
wider strategic forums. Coordination with the Youth 
Justice Management Board and the Wirral Safeguarding 
Children Partnership’s work will be central to this.

To help monitor and evaluate progress Wirral has 
developed a monitoring tool, the Safer Wirral Tracker, 
which monitors and reports on all crime patterns and 
trends across Wirral. The tracker enables SWPB partners 
to respond to adverse patterns and deploys resources 
and actions to alleviate any pressures.

In 2021, overall crime has reduced compared to 2020, 
correlating with a year of living with the impact of 
COVID. However, ASB, Hate Crime and Domestic 
Abuse have seen increases, again perhaps as a result of 
intolerance due to COVID restrictions.

This year, in a positive move, the strategy has expanded 
to include Road Safety and Coastal and Inland Water 
Safety to bring together all the key elements to help 
keep Wirral safe.

Wirral is undergoing significant change, with large-scale regeneration programmes planned 
across the borough. Aligned to this, Wirral Council and partners have been developing 
infrastructure projects to ensure Wirral continues to be safe.

Page 24



TOURISM, COMMUNITIES, CULTURE AND LEISURE COMMITTEE

SAFER WIRRAL PARTNERSHIP BOARD
X3 ELECTED MEMBERS

(1 Labour, 1 Conservative, 1 Lib Dem)

Anti-Social 
Behaviour and

Local Crime 
Operational Group

Chair
Merseyside

Police

Hate Crime
Strategy Group

Chair
Anthony Walker 

Foundation

Wirral Violence 
Reduction Group

Chair
Merseyside Police

Domestic Abuse 
Alliance

Lead Officer
Asst. Director
Early Help & 
Prevention

Wirral Resilience 
Action Group

Chair
Wirral Council

Wirral Road Safety 
Partnership

Chair
Wirral Council

Wirral Coastal
and Inland Water

Safety Group

Chair
Wirral Council

Wirral Youth
Safety Interest 

Group

Chair
Wirral Council

Partnerships Committee

Health & Wellbeing Board

Children & Families 
Partnerships

Economic Partnership

Merseyside Criminal
Justice Board

Safeguarding Adults Board

Local Safeguarding
Children’s Board

Youth Justice
Management Board

Strategic Housing
Partnership

Merseyside Community
Safety Partnership

Wirral Chamber
of Commerce

Merseyside Protecting 
Vulnerable People
Strategic Forum

Merseyside Road
Safety Partnership

SWPB GOVERNANCE STUCTURE

Reporting Relationship Working Relationship

P
age 25



PRINCIPLES
OF STRATEGY

WIRRAL COMMUNITY SAFETY STRATEGY 2021-2026

The following principles will guide our strategic approach throughout this 5 year strategy.

1. A public health approach
Focus on early intervention and prevention, and the 
wider determinants of crime and community safety, 
including social inequalities, employment, skills, health, 
housing and environment.

2. Resident engagement
Work with the local community to understand local 
priorities and develop an approach that is responsive 
and effective in increasing feelings of safety.

3. Collaboration
Share data and intelligence and work across agencies to 
facilitate an efficient and effective approach and better 
targeted interventions.

4. Supporting victims
Ensure a focus on victims and strengthen local systems 
to support victims, reduce repeat victimisation, and 
recognise that perpetrators of violence can often be 
victims too.

Page 26



CROSS-CUTTING 
ISSUES

WIRRAL COMMUNITY SAFETY STRATEGY 2021-2026

Substance Misuse
We know that a significant proportion of crime is linked 
to substance misuse, from acquisitive crime to serious 
violent offending and gang crime linked to drug markets. 
This will be an important cross-cutting theme within all 
our priorities, and partners will seek to reduce substance 
misuse through health interventions and treatment; 
supporting repeat offenders out of substance misuse 
and addiction through targeted interventions; and 
disrupting drug markets through enforcement activity.

Mental Health
A significant proportion of those in contact with the 
criminal justice system suffer from mental health 
problems, with people particularly at risk during and 
after contact with criminal justice system. Evidence 
suggests that 33 per cent of male and 51 per cent of 
female prisoners suffer from depression, compared to 
9 per cent and 13 per cent in the general population. 
By identifying and addressing mental ill health at the 
earliest opportunity we can aim for the best outcomes 
for those people experiencing mental health issues and 
provide holistic support for people with complex and 
challenging needs.

Housing and Homelessness
Wirral has a persistent small cohort of homelessness 
and rough sleeping has been increasing year on year 
prior to Covid pandemic. This has a significant impact 
on the health of those individuals involved, while 
homelessness can also be linked to vulnerability and 
victimisation, as well as anti-social behaviour and 
substance misuse. The council is developing strategies 
to step-up the delivery of genuinely affordable homes, 
and to tackle homelessness with compassion and care. 
The Safer Wirral Partnership Board will also consider 
homelessness as a cross-cutting issue as part of a 
holistic approach to improving community safety.

Social integration
A thriving, cohesive and well-integrated community 
can help to reduce the risk of hate crime and the risk 
of extremism taking root. However, there is a role 
for the local authority and partners to continue to 
monitor and promote social-integration and provide an 
environment where people of all backgrounds come 
together regularly as one community. The Safer Wirral 
Partnership Board will consider social integration and 
community engagement cutting across the priorities in 
this plan.

Wirral is committed to a joined-up approach that addresses the underlying issues that affect 
levels of crime and reoffending, and will reflect these cross-cutting issues in all our work.
This includes:

Page 27



WIRRAL COMMUNITY SAFETY STRATEGY 2021-2026

SAFER WIRRAL 
PARTNERSHIP 
BOARD 
PRIORITIES
The ten priorities set out below have been developed as a result of feedback from the 
numerous SWPB’s stakeholder workshops and the priorities set by the Merseyside Police
and Crime Commissioner.

1. Anti-Social Behaviour 

2. Violent Crime 

3. Domestic Abuse 

4. Drugs and Alcohol 

5. Hate Crime

6. Modern Slavery 

7. Prevent 

8. Road Safety 

9. Emergency Planning 

10. Coastal and Inland Water Safety

Page 28



PRIORITY
THEMES

Page 29



ANTI-SOCIAL
BEHAVIOUR

PRIORITY THEMES

DID YOU KNOW?
Between 2016/17 and 2019/20 
ASB incidents in Wirral have
fallen by 47%.

The ASB theme was the number one issue on the feedback from the consultation workshops and on 
our residents’ surveys in 2015 and 2017, as it is often a blight on the majority of law-abiding residents. 
We will tackle crime and anti-social behaviour, using the appropriate powers and legislation.

ASB is categorised as Personal (broken windows, cars vandalised, threats, harassment etc),
Nuisance (group gatherings, loud/rowdy behaviour, alcohol/drug misuse etc) and
Environmental (littering, graffiti, urinating in public etc).

1. To strengthen and reassure
-  Identify and support vulnerable victims and witnesses.  
-  Work with residents, local communities, elected  
 members, businesses and partner agencies.
-  Provide guidance and advice to assist residents to  
 resolve low level neighbour disputes.

2. To prevent and deter 
-  Promote and publicise successful ASB case outcomes. 
-  Use of CCTV in hot spot areas.
-  Use of community action days/events.
-  Attendance at public meetings.
-  Promote diversionary activities for young people.  
-  Use overt patrol deployment to ASB hot spot areas.

3. To conduct timely and appropriate enforcement 
-  Manage ASB cases, interventions, mediation and  
 enforcement activities.
-  Utilise legal and statutory powers to tackle anti-social  
 behaviour including Public Safety Protection Orders  
 (PSPOs e.g. New Brighton and West Kirby).

4. Support to tackle the cause of anti-social behaviour
-  Offer support to people to change their behaviour.  
 We are committed to providing a balance between  
 enforcement action and support.

Priorities in Wirral sit under four broad headings:

Page 30



VIOLENT
CRIME

PRIORITY THEMES

DID YOU KNOW?
There were 73 fewer violent 
offences recorded in Wirral in 20/21 
compared to 19/20 and a reduction 
in knife crime by 24 offences.

Priorities in Wirral for Violent Crime include:

Violent crime includes knife and gun crime, use of corrosive substances, violence and gang activity, and 
other violent offences such as Robbery and non-domestic violence with injury

Merseyside Police are working collaboratively with the Safer Wirral Partnership Board to deliver a 
number of different initiatives across the borough aimed at preventing violent crime, pursuing offenders 
and protecting victims in order to make the Wirral a safe place.

Wirral has completed the second year of Home Office-funded violent crime intervention programmes 
commissioned through the Merseyside Violence Reduction Partnership. The programme aims to follow 
the successful ‘Glasgow Model’ a health-based approach which is recognised as best practice across 
Europe and is proving successful across Merseyside and Wirral.

There is new legislation for Serious Violence putting more emphasis and responsibility on partner 
organisations to collaborate to prevent and reduce serious violence.

Operation Target
Targeting suspects and locations
Acting on and developing intelligence
Reducing and preventing serious violent crime 
Gaining confidence through reassurance 
Engaging partners and communities
Teaching, learning and sharing. 

Disruption and targeted action against serious violence 
offenders and networks.

Build resilience and defence for vulnerable people, 
communities and businesses, including improved street 
lighting, CCTV and improved home security.

Page 31



DOMESTIC
ABUSE

PRIORITY THEMES

Be there when we are needed.

Increase safety for those at risk, without adding to
their trauma.

Reduce opportunities for perpetrators to abuse.

Support people to live the lives they want after
harm occurs.

Build a better, kinder future for the next generation.

DID YOU KNOW?
In Wirral in 2019/20 over 8000 
individuals are known to have
been affected by Domestic Abuse.

Priorities in Wirral for Domestic Abuse include:

In Wirral over the last year there has been an increase in Domestic Abuse, a reflection of the
nation-wide pattern and often pinned on a year of the added stresses and strains of living with COVID.

We want Wirral to be a place where, as few people as possible are affected by domestic abuse, but 
those who are, can get help to end the abuse and go on to live the lives they want and deserve.

Wirral’s ambitious strategy, ‘Domestic Abuse - No Excuse’, shifts the focus towards those directly and 
indirectly affected, victims, survivors, perpetrators, their children, friends and families and intends to 
lead to improved experiences and better outcomes for Wirral residents.

Projects underway include intensive work with young victims and perpetrators, early years work in 
schools, TRAUMA and ACES training, drugs and alcohol interventions and work to address Violence 
Against Women and Girls (VAWG). These projects are partnerships between the Council, Public Health, 
schools and the voluntary and community sector.

Page 32



DRUGS AND
ALCOHOL

PRIORITY THEMES

Reduce drug related deaths - strengthening the links 
between specialist drug services and Primary and 
Secondary health care.

Reduce Drug and Alcohol related crime - supporting 
those that need help and build the connections between 
specialist drug and alcohol treatment services and the 
criminal justice system, custody suites, the courts, prison 
and Merseyside Police.

Reduce the prevalence of misuse - focus on education, 
adopting an early intervention approach and provide 
consistent quality information and messaging through 
the most appropriate channels.

Protect children, young people and families.

Create safe environments.

DID YOU KNOW?
12% of all crime in Wirral is
alcohol related.

26% of all violent crime with injury, 
in Wirral is alcohol related.

Priorities in Wirral for Drugs and Alcohol include:

Wirral data on drug and alcohol-related crime is, to some extent, reflective of the national trend
which shows an increase in drug and alcohol related deaths and crimes. Drugs and alcohol have
well-recognised causal link to ASB and crime and in Wirral we are increasingly aware of the impact 
drugs and alcohol has on the exploitation of our younger generation through County Lines and
other activities.

Page 33



HATE
CRIME

PRIORITY THEMES

Tackling race and religious hate crime. This accounts 
for 80% of hate crime in Wirral.

Continue to act on every instance of hate crime.

Develop and support campaigns and events to educate 
and inform to reduce hate crime incidents. On-going 
campaigns include Black Lives Matter, Holocaust 
Remembrance Day, Hate Crime Awareness Week, 
Wirral Remembers Srebrenica, Show Racism the Red 
Card, LGBT History Month, Pride, Schools/Borough of 
Sanctuary.

Work with schools and young people to provide quality 
interventions to educate and inform to prevent
Hate Crime.

DID YOU KNOW?
In March 2021 Religious/Race Hate 
Crime increased by 30% in Wirral, 
compared to March 2020.

Priorities in Wirral for Hate Crime include:

Hate crime has increased across Wirral and on Merseyside. This is reflected across England and
again as with other offences, COVID related stresses are highlighted as a likely contributory factor
in the increase.

Hate crime takes many forms including race, disability, gender, sexuality, religious beliefs and can be 
verbal, physical and increasingly perpetrated via social media.

In Wirral, key agencies are part of a Multi-Agency Risk Assessment Conference (MARAC) and meet
to consider hate crime incidents.

Agencies include Anthony Walker Foundation, Daisy UK, Citizens Advice, Police and Crime 
Commissioner, Police, ASB Team, Housing, Irish Community Care, Wirral Change, Deen Centre,
MEAS (Merseyside Educational Achievement Service), Tomorrow’s Women Wirral.

Page 34



MODERN
SLAVERY

PRIORITY THEMES

Modern Slavery includes forced sexual exploitation, domestic slavery or forced labour on farms in 
construction, shops, nail bars, car washes or manufacturing. A growing form of slavery is trafficking 
young people into crime, often via County Lines drugs operations and/or production
(e.g. cannabis farms).

Wirral developed a comprehensive Modern Slavery Strategy in 2019 and embarked on training a host of 
safeguarding and regulatory agencies across the Safer Wirral Partnership.

In addition, Wirral Council Procurement guidelines overtly refer to Modern Slavery policy and guidelines 
to ensure the drive to ensure value for money does not compromise the employment standards or 
ethics of its suppliers.

Protecting Vulnerable people - includes Operation 
Sanctuary, a Police-led multi-agency team working with 
partners such as Immigration, Red Cross, Salvation Army 
to prevent and recognise modern slavery 

Child Exploitation Team - a multi-agency team 
tackling County Lines as a high priority issue as well as 
safeguarding, violence, and drug and alcohol themes.

Homelessness - the oppression and exploitation of our 
most vulnerable residents is a critical part of the modern 
slavery issue. An awareness raising campaign - Invisible 
People, which will include a conference, a workshop 
and a strategy and action plan will help tackle the 
exploitation of this vulnerable group

Coordinating Partners - Embedding awareness and 
best practice among key agencies and giving those 
agencies with the tools and powers - Regulatory bodies 
- Environmental Health, Licensing, Trading Standards, 
Councillors and even building control and development 
control, the knowledge of the issues that help them to 
recognise the signs and address the issues of modern 
slavery.

Procurement Rules - Embedding awareness of Modern 
Slavery within procurement regulations and practise 
to ensure the efforts made to reduce costs, do not 
compromise the rights of our service providers/users 
and that they sign up to minimum standards.

DID YOU KNOW?
In 2020/21 there were 24 recorded 
Modern Slavery crimes in Wirral.

Priorities in Wirral for Modern Slavery include:

Page 35



PREVENT

PRIORITY THEMES

Tools to Resist Radicalisation - a schools’ programme 
in primary schools across Wirral to educate children to 
prevent grooming by sexual predators. The programme 
ensures children are able to practise and demonstrate 
critical thinking and build a ‘digital resilience’ to the 
online world which they increasingly inhabit. 

Grassing and Grooming Programme - this work feeds 
into County Lines work led by Merseyside Police and 
is supported by local head teachers. Already delivered 
6 events for 27 schools across Wirral and is being 
delivered by Ariel Trust in 2021.

Channel Process - this ensures all the correct agencies 
are around the table and follow best practice - funded 
by Home Office for nine Local Authorities across 
Merseyside and Cheshire and includes:
-  Counter Terrorism Local Profile
-  Counter Terrorism Police give an annual update on  
 the extremism terrorism status of Wirral and how it  
 compares to the national picture.

Continue to endorse the Home Office best practice 
hallmarks guidance, including:
local risk assessment, operating an effective multi 
agency group, Prevent partnership plan, monthly referral 
process, monthly Channel panel, problem solving 
process, training programme, policies for venue hire and 
IT policies, voluntary and faith sector engagement.

Develop a clear Communications Plan to communicate 
the need and impact of Prevent, to frontline staff and 
communities.

DID YOU KNOW?
We work in schools across Wirral
to prevent grooming into any form 
of extremism.

Priorities in Wirral for PREVENT include:

PREVENT is about safeguarding and supporting those most vulnerable to being radicalised into 
extremism/terrorism.

Wirral has a strong partnership approach to the PREVENT agenda as part of the overall Home Office 
CONTEST strategy which follows the 4 P’s, Pursue, Prevent, Protect, Prepare.

Page 36



ROAD
SAFETY

PRIORITY THEMES

DID YOU KNOW?
Between the year 2000 and 2019 
the number of recorded road traffic 
collisions reduced from 1,379
to 417.

Priorities in Wirral for Road Safety include:

Develop & encourage key stakeholder partnership 
working to improve road safety, including communities 
and community concern groups.

Continue to develop programmes of intervention, 
education, training & publicity for key casualty groups 
such as Children & Young People; Pedestrians; Cyclists; 
Motorcyclists; Young Drivers and Senior Road Users.

Take steps to introduce more widespread 20mph 
speed limits on non-major residential roads, roads near 
educational and shopping areas.

Support policies and programmes to increase
‘active travel’.

Improving road safety continues to be an essential priority in Wirral. Despite overall ongoing 
improvements and casualty reduction on our road network there is still much more to be achieved.

Travel on our road network is essential for our everyday lives. An effective and safe transport system 
is essential to support our communities, for people to access employment and education services, 
leisure activities and to assist driving economic growth and we need to continue to support the ongoing 
increase in active travel as part of our Climate Emergency.

We will continue to use and develop a range of sources of information to expand on our Statutory Duty 
to improve road safety. However, it is important to recognise that the responsibility for road safety is 
not simply one just for the Council’s Road Safety Team, but cuts across a range of Council departments, 
partner agencies, businesses, educational settings and indeed, our community, as a whole. It is a shared 
responsibility, and everyone will need to play their part.

We will adopt the approach of Vison Zero and aspire to an overarching goal that nobody should be 
hurt whilst using our road network. Using our ongoing analysis of road casualty types, listening to 
community concerns and working with partners we have identified a number of issues and road user 
groups as our strategic priorities.

Page 37



EMERGENCY
PLANNING

PRIORITY THEMES

DID YOU KNOW?
Merseyside has 10 upper tier 
COMAH Sites (Control Of Major 
Accidents Hazards). 40% are located 
on Wirral.

Priorities in Wirral for Emergency Planning include:

Wirral has a number of key challenges around Emergency Planning which include the impact and 
response to COVID, but also around coastal flooding and, being a popular visitor destination, around 
event and crowd management. There are also control and regulatory planning/exercises with key local 
industrial and chemical plants.

It is important that on Wirral we have resilient communities who understand the risks they face and 
are prepared to respond as and when the need arises. Examples include signing up to Flood Watch, 
engaging in public information updates, having emergency supplies to hand for power/food supply 
disruptions.

The Civil Contingencies Act 2004 requires Local Authorities to prepare, plan and exercise for emergency 
response and recovery; similar to ‘Blue Light’ emergency services.

The below functions are carried out within the Local Resilience Forum, locally known as the
Merseyside Resilience Forum (MRF), where responders work in a collaborative basis to plan, train, 
exercise and debrief our response and recovery arrangements.

Assess local risks and use this to inform emergency 
planning.

Put in place emergency plans.

Put in place Business Continuity Management 
arrangements.

Put in place arrangements to make information available 
to the public about civil protection matters and maintain 
arrangements to warn, inform and advise the public in 
the event of an emergency.

Share information with other local responders
(Police, Fire and Rescue Service, Ambulance Service, 
RNLI, Environment Agency and voluntary sector 
agencies) to enhance co-ordination.

Co-operate with other local responders to enhance
co-ordination and efficiency.

Provide advice and assistance to businesses and 
voluntary organisations about business continuity 
management. (Local Authorities only).

Page 38



PRIORITY THEMES

DID YOU KNOW?
Wirral has four beaches designated 
by the Environment Agency as 
good/excellent for the quality of the 
bathing water at West Kirby, Meols, 
Moreton and Wallasey.

Priorities in Wirral for Coastal and Inland Water Safety include:

Wirral Council is responsible for the borough’s coastline, which is made up of a range of different sites 
including beaches, coastal paths, recreational and commercial marine operations and activities.

We work in partnership with Coastal Management and Environmental Health departments, the
Royal National Lifeboat Institution (RNLI) and Marine Coastguard Agency. Together they coordinate a 
joint response through a collaboration of resources, shared practise, guidance and expertise to ensure 
effective water safety management is achieved along Wirral’s coastline. There is also the vital working 
partnership between Wirral Council and RNLI who are contracted to provide lifeguard services at
key locations.

The overall strategy for Wirral will focus on what will save the most lives.

Public Rescue Equipment - ensure the quality and 
availability of appropriate resources.

Edge Protection - maintain and protect our shores
and coastline.

Coastal Path Maintenance - maintain safe access along 
Wirral’s coastal pathways.

Signage - ensure adequate signage alerting users to 
follow guidance and/or hazards

Education - develop a communications plan to enable 
the safe use of our waterways beaches and coastline.

COASTAL
AND INLAND 
WATER SAFETY

Page 39



Keeping Wirral Safe 

180MAY21GB

To discuss or ask questions, please contact:
Mark Camborne, Assistant Director Neighbourhoods, Safety & Transport

markcamborne@wirral.gov.uk

www.wirral.gov.uk/communities-and-neighbourhoods/equality-impact-assessments

Page 40



1

HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD

DATE: 3 NOVEMBER 2021

REPORT TITLE HEALTH AND EMPLOYMENT
REPORT OF DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC HEALTH  

DIRECTOR OF REGENERATION AND PLACE

REPORT SUMMARY
Good employment opportunities are a fundamental part of our collective effort to improve 
health outcomes. As well as being vital to individual health, an economically active 
population enables sustainable economically prosperous communities. 

Unemployment and health related worklessness have presented longstanding challenges 
within the borough.  The pandemic has amplified these challenges resulting in a fall in 
employment and increased health related inactivity. The Public Health Annual Report 
2020/2021 recognises these challenges and advocates for a strong local economy that 
improves the public’s health.

The impact of the pandemic on employment and health has yet to be fully understood. 
Emerging experiences and evidence from services working with local residents is 
presented to the Board and will be used to develop plans to respond to the 2021 Public 
Health Annual Report recommendations.

RECOMMENDATIONS
The Health and Wellbeing Board is recommended to note the report and supporting 
presentation contained in Appendix 1.

Page 41

Agenda Item 7



2

SUPPORTING INFORMATION

1.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION/S

1.1 The relationship between employment and health is well established and was 
highlighted in the recently published Public Health Annual Report. The presentation 
provided to the Board offers an overview of emerging issues in relation to health and 
employment following the COVID-19 pandemic and highlights work being carried 
out across Wirral to respond to these issues.

2.0     OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED

2.1 This report provides the Health and Wellbeing Board with an overview of emerging 
issues for information. Long term service plans need to be developed responding to 
the associated demands arising from the COVID-19 pandemic.

3.0     BACKGROUND INFORMATION

3.1 In June 2021 the Health and Wellbeing Board received a report on work to improve 
health through employment highlighting challenges for Wirral and action to address 
them. The global COVID-19 pandemic has compounded these challenges and 
further highlighted the need to augment work that supports people to enter the job 
market and maintain economic independence for themselves and their families. The 
significance of this on health and health inequalities is reported in the recently 
published Public Health Annual Report 2020/2021 which recommends that 
“Employment support services and skills development programmes are available, 
accessible and sustainable to ensure income maximisation and support those most 
susceptible to job loss and job insecurity”.

3.2 COVID-19 has had a profound effect on the UK labour market. Many workers have 
been furloughed and unemployment is likely to rise materially over the next year 
following the cessation of the furlough scheme on 30th September 2021 and as 
businesses recover. The latest data showed that at the point of the furlough scheme 
ending Wirral had around 6,500 employees on furlough, whilst it is unclear how 
many of these have returned to their existing employer, we are expecting local 
services to see an influx of new jobseekers. This compounds many existing issues 
making it difficult for those furthest from the labour market and excluded groups 
who are now competing against those recently unemployed who may be more ‘job 
ready’.

3.3 The unemployment rate took seven years to return to pre-recession levels after the 
past two recessions and the expected rate could take even longer as uncertainty 
about future demand, could cause firms to delay hiring decisions. The impact of 
COVID-19 is different in nature to past impacts on unemployment levels, COVID-19 
has led to greater uncertainty about the economic outlook and the likelihood of 
finding a job. Being in good employment protects health, while unemployment, 
particularly long- term unemployment, contributes significantly to poor health. The 
broader strategy for the economy and our regeneration plans is therefore integral to 
our efforts to address existing health inequalities within the borough, as reflected in 

Page 42



3

the Public Health Annual Report 2020/2021, and the work of the Health and 
Wellbeing Board.

3.4 In addition to the impact of the pandemic there are several national policy changes 
which will affect both working and unemployed households this autumn. From 6th 
September 2021 claimants who receive Universal Credit will lose £80 per month or 
£1035pa, due to the temporary COVID uplift payment ending, it will affect different 
people at different times due to the nature of the way the benefit is paid, but by 
November will be affecting all claimants. Research from Policy in Practice shows 
that 225,000 households nationally will be unable to meet essential costs at the 
point their benefit is reduced.

3.5 For those in employment, the rise in the National Insurance (NI) contribution 
scheme for workers and employers is a further loss of income and may deter some 
employers from recruiting new staff as well as rationalising their workforce. Those 
people who are in receipt of working tax credit will also lose the easement, which 
has allowed them to work less than 16 hours and still receive their tax credit 
payments, this is likely to force more people to move to Universal Credit, in most 
cases this means they will be much worse off than on the more generous tax credits 
package. The grace period that was provided to people making a new claim in 2020 
of not having their benefit reduced due to the benefit cap, will now have this 
restriction applied, again removing some income from their benefit. Families with 
two or more children will be amongst those most affected.

3.6 In August 2021, Government released an Open Consultation for ‘Shaping Future 
Support: The Health and Disability Green Paper. The consultation asks for views on 
how the Government can help people to live more independently, including support 
to start, stay and succeed in work and ways we can improve the experience people 
have of the benefits system.

Local services to support people into employment

3.7 Local services, including Community Connectors and Reach Out delivered by 
Involve North West, continue to respond to supporting local people and their 
families and will be an invaluable resource for local communities as they begin to 
recover from the impacts of the COVID-19 pandemic. The table below details the 
current Council investment into these programmes. 

Commissioned 
Service

Investment Funding Source Contract 
Expiry

Connect Us

(extra investment in 
programme- further 
22 connectors to 
support COVID)

£717,121

£598,881

Public Health

Tier 3 COVID monies

Feb 2023 
(option of 
additional 
+1, +1)

March 
2022

Reach Out £1,450,500 European Social Fund- 
£934,766.67

October 
2022

Page 43



4

Public Health- £515,733.33

3.8 The Reach Out project within the Wirral Ways to Work Programme, is part of the 
wider Liverpool City Region Combined Authority Ways to Work Programme. This 
programme is European Social Fund (ESF) funded and is the City Region’s flagship 
employment support programme with all six local authorities delivering it since 
2016.

3.9 Connect Us is a Council commissioned service, currently employing 48 connectors 
to work across all wards in Wirral. Originally commissioned to address high levels of 
health related worklessness in the borough, the aim of this service is to engage the 
disengaged through door knocking in communities to tackle social isolation and 
promote active inclusion to improve mental health and wellbeing. Community 
Connectors provide outreach and one to one support to individuals to encourage 
greater access to social groups and activities within the community and mainstream 
services. The service works with individuals and communities building trust and 
coaching individuals to be the best that they can be. An independent evaluation 
carried out by John Moore’s University evidenced the contribution the service 
makes to improving outcomes for local people, including supporting people to gain 
secure and stable housing, improving relationships with family members, accessing 
volunteering and employment opportunities, and providing debt and benefits advice.

3.10 The Combined Authority recently conducted research as part of their submission to 
the Health Foundation for their ‘Economies for Healthier Lives’ bid, which aims to 
improve how employment and health services work together. Within the research 
service users were asked about their experiences of accessing health and 
employment services and the barriers people report facing related to health when 
trying to find work were as follows: 

 Personal fears (whether founded or not) to do with how they would be perceived 
and judged 

 Structural issues with application processes, general processes, and 
organisation policies and insurance

 Societal barriers in the form of lack of knowledge and understand of health 
issues within companies, employment support, and the general population

 Cultural barriers within organisations over aspects such as flexible working 
opportunities, and ‘outsider’/’insider’ mentality i.e. fitting in with the organisations 
‘culture’ and ‘norms’

 Economic barriers such as lack of part-time opportunities within the area or 
insufficient financial support when not employed by an employer

3.11 Those with long term health conditions (likely to last 12 months or more) report to 
having faced these barriers more than those without. Many of the health conditions 
reported are unseen conditions such as mental health.

3.12 As the evidence of the effect of the pandemic starts to emerge and evolve the Board 
is presented with the experiences from these local services and service users to 
highlight key issues and will be used to develop plans in response to the 2021 Public 
Health Annual Report recommendations.

Page 44



5

4.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

4.1 The services described in this report and the work they do is currently funded and 
commissioned, some are resourced from European Grant Funding (ESF) which will 
cease after 2023, and or short-term Council funding. Long term funding solutions 
need to be identified. 

5.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

5.1 There are no legal implications arising from this report.

6.0 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: STAFFING, ICT AND ASSETS

6.1 This report and work referenced within it has been developed by public health and 
investment teams working collaboratively. There are long term risks in relation to 
recurrent funding and therefore the sustainability of the work referenced within this 
report.

7.0 RELEVANT RISKS 

7.1 Some of the services described within this report are currently commissioned for a 
specified period using grants and or other short-term funding. They are not 
therefore secured for the longer term, which places a great risk on services for 
unemployed residents in the borough.

8.0 ENGAGEMENT/CONSULTATION 

8.1 No public engagement or consultation has been undertaken in relation to this report. 
However, the schemes of work referenced within the report engage with services 
users to inform delivery and development.

9.0 EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS

9.1 Wirral Council has a legal requirement to make sure its policies, and the way it 
carries out its work, do not discriminate against anyone. An Equality Impact 
Assessment is a tool to help council services identify steps they can take to ensure 
equality for anyone who might be affected by a particular policy, decision or activity.

9.2 We have used the Wirral Growth Plan EIA and Community Connectors 
recommission EIA as part of our assessments.  You will find both on the link below.  
They have both been reviewed and no material changes have been made in 
respect of this reporthttps://www.wirral.gov.uk/communities-and-
neighbourhoods/equality-impact-assessments

10.0 ENVIRONMENT AND CLIMATE IMPLICATIONS

10.1 No direct climate implications. 

11.0 COMMUNITY WEALTH IMPLICATIONS

Page 45

https://www.wirral.gov.uk/communities-and-neighbourhoods/equality-impact-assessments
https://www.wirral.gov.uk/communities-and-neighbourhoods/equality-impact-assessments


6

11.1 The report describes the symbiotic relationship between the economy and health.  
The Community Wealth Building Strategy makes an important contribution to 
improving economic, social and health outcomes of the borough and reducing 
disparities in health. The work outlined in this report recommendations will 
contribute to the aspirations outlined in the Community Wealth Building Strategy.

REPORT AUTHOR: Rachael Musgrave 
Assistant Director: Consultant in Public Health
telephone:  (0151 666 5164)
email:  rachaelmusgrave@wirral.gov.uk

APPENDICES

APPENDIX 1: PRESENTATION FROM INVOLVE NORTH WEST

BACKGROUND PAPERS
1) Wirral Economy Strategy (2021)

2) Public Health Annual Report 2020/2021 Embracing Optimism: Living with Covid-19.

3) Timpson et al (2019) An Evaluation of the Wirral Health-Related Worklessness 
Programme Executive Summary. Liverpool John Moores, Public Health Institute 

4) Wirral Council (2021) ReachOut Project Evaluation. 

5) Wirral Intelligence Service (2021) Wirral JSNA. Economy, Business and Skills
https://www.wirralintelligenceservice.org/this-is-wirral/economy-business-and-skills/

6) ONS (2020) Deaths involving COVID-19 by local area and socioeconomic deprivation: 
deaths occurring between 1 March and 31 July 2020
https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/birthsdeathsandmarriages/
deaths/bulletins/deathsinvolvingcovid19bylocalareasanddeprivation/deathsoccurring
between1marchand31july2020

7) HM Government (2021) Build Back Better: our plan for growth 
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/build-back-better-our-plan-for-growth

8) Health Equity Institute (2020) Health Equity in England: The Marmot Review 10 Years 
On
https://www.health.org.uk/publications/reports/the-marmot-review-10-years-on

9) HM Government (2019) Public Health England. Health Matters: Health and Work. 
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/health-matters-health-and-work/health-
matters-health-and-work#how-phe-can-support-you

SUBJECT HISTORY (last 3 years)

Page 46

mailto:rachaelmusgrave@wirral.gov.uk
https://www.wirralintelligenceservice.org/this-is-wirral/economy-business-and-skills/
https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/birthsdeathsandmarriages/deaths/bulletins/deathsinvolvingcovid19bylocalareasanddeprivation/deathsoccurringbetween1marchand31july2020
https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/birthsdeathsandmarriages/deaths/bulletins/deathsinvolvingcovid19bylocalareasanddeprivation/deathsoccurringbetween1marchand31july2020
https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/birthsdeathsandmarriages/deaths/bulletins/deathsinvolvingcovid19bylocalareasanddeprivation/deathsoccurringbetween1marchand31july2020
https://www.health.org.uk/publications/reports/the-marmot-review-10-years-on
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/health-matters-health-and-work/health-matters-health-and-work#how-phe-can-support-you
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/health-matters-health-and-work/health-matters-health-and-work#how-phe-can-support-you


7

Council Meeting Date
Health & Wellbeing Board

Adult Social Care & Public Health Committee

16 June 2021

7th June 2021

Page 47



This page is intentionally left blank



The ReachOut Partnership 

Justine Molyneux – CEO 

Lia Robinson – Contract Manager

‘Delivering employment solutions to individuals

and families across Wirral’

P
age 49



How we continue to be successful?

We offer a full package of integrated solutions to tackle barriers to employment (including health & wellbeing issues) with the

following unique approaches:

• We knock on doors in the community (encouraging proactive engagement)

• We delivery work clubs in local community bases (specialist work clubs for priority groups 50+, women, young people etc) 

• We have a team of fully qualified and skilled workforce of Wirral residents - with 14 years experience

• We have specialised advisors (e.g. young people, BAME, drugs & alcohol, criminality, non-digital, language, lone parents, self employment)

• We have robust procedures in place to ensure high quality and case management is met

• We are very proactive at self – marketing approach (Word of mouth - family & friend referrals and partners)

• We have an excellent network of local employers working alongside the service

• We have newly adapted remote service available 

Our continued success is built upon our reputation and trusted brand which has gained the confidence & respect of residents across Wirral

P
age 50



Measuring Success and Impacts

Over the past 5 years:

• 2,650 of local residents gained sustainable employment.

• 81% of these individuals sustained in employment post 6 months +.

• 620 of local residents where supported into employment during the core pandemic – this 

included mainly, key worker roles:

- Delivery Drivers

- Support Worker / Care Homes

- Factory Packers

• 62% of these individuals sustained employment post 6 months +.

P
age 51



ReachOut during the Pandemic
12 Month Review

Impacts

• Higher levels of mental health and social anxiety issues being presented.
• Barriers with new online/digital ways of life/applying for jobs (50+ client profile).
• Financial impacts on residents who where furloughed.
• Reduced training/voluntary opportunities.
• Increased financial and poverty barriers.
• All European Nationals having to gain European settlement status as a result of Brexit. 

How we tackled it?

• Wellbeing and resilience training for all job coaches / weekly wellbeing calls offered to every client.
• We focused on the people not their conditions/identified who they were at their best not at their worst.

• Implemented a remote service (telephone, email and facetime) with step by step digital support.
• CV and job application support given to any Wirral resident regardless of employment status.
• We continued to work with local employers to identify current job opportunities.
• We provided clothes, food and fuel vouchers. 
• Full support for all clients with applications via ESS (European Settlement Scheme), to enable continued/new employment.

We ensured the Involve Northwest services were very reactive to the needs of our clients.

P
age 52



The difference we have made..

… in the words of local people

P
age 53



The difference we have made..

… in the words of local people

P
age 54



The difference we have made..

… in the words of local people

P
age 55



The difference we have made..

… in the words of local people

P
age 56



THANK YOU

P
age 57



T
his page is intentionally left blank



HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD
Wednesday, 3rd November 2021

REPORT TITLE: INTEGRATED CARE SYSTEM AND INTEGRATED 
CARE PARTNERSHIP DEVELOPMENTS

REPORT OF: DIRECTOR OF CARE AND HEALTH

REPORT SUMMARY

The purpose of this report is to update the Health and Wellbeing Board on the development 
of Cheshire and Merseyside Integrated Care System and Wirral’s Integrated Care 
Partnership.

RECOMMENDATIONS

The Health and Wellbeing Board is recommended to:

1. Note the progress achieved at the Governance workshop held with place partners on 8th 
October 2021 and continue to receive regular committee reports relating to the 
development of Cheshire and Merseyside Integrated Care System, and Wirral’s Place-
based partnership arrangements.

2. Note the development of and next steps relating to the Wirral’s Integrated Care 
Partnership at “place” level, and the requirement to submit a self-assess against the 
development framework to the Cheshire and Merseyside Integrated Care System by 
29th October 2021.

SUPPORTING INFORMATION

Page 59

Agenda Item 8



1.0 REASON/S FOR RECOMMENDATIONS

1.1 The Health and Wellbeing Board has a key role in the development and oversight of 
the place-based partnership, and regular briefings will be provided to keep the Board 
members informed of regional and local progress.

1.2 COVID-19, and experience over the last few years has demonstrated the importance 
of different parts of the health and care system working together in the best interests 
of the public and patients, despite the legislative barriers.  The proposed Health and 
Care Bill implements NHS England’s recommendations to support integration by 
legislating for every part of England to be covered by an Integrated Care Board (ICB) 
and Integrated Care Partnership (ICP), building upon the existing non-statutory 
Integrated Care Systems across England.

1.3 Integrated Care System - Cheshire and Merseyside Level 

1.4 The roles of the Integrated Care Partnership (ICP) and the Integrated Care Board 
(ICB) are distinct and complementary in supporting the objectives of the Integrated 
Care System (ICS).  The ICB and ICP will work closely with local Health and 
Wellbeing Boards (HWBs) as they have the experience as ‘place-based’ planners, 
and the ICB will be required to have regard to the Joint Strategic Needs 
Assessments and Joint Local Health and Wellbeing Strategies (JHWSs) produced by 
HWBs.

1.5 ICBs and ICPs will also strengthen partnerships between the NHS and local 
authorities, and with local partners, including groups representing the public and 
patient perspective, the voluntary sector, and wider public service provision.

1.6 The system ICP will work, first and foremost, on the principle of statutorily equal 
partnership between the NHS and local government to work with and for their 
partners and communities.

1.7 Place is a key component of the emerging ICS and pivotal to the achievement of 
better outcomes and reduced inequalities.  Cheshire and Merseyside ICS will be 
based on a principle of primacy of place.  It is recognised and evidenced that 
integrated working is key to improving population outcomes and this is the ethos of 
the new legislation.  Place-based partnerships and governance will be established 
based on the agreed principles and this may occur at a varying pace in each of the 9 
places but the ambition is for as much delegation as possible of ICB responsibilities 
to place.   

1.8 As the Cheshire and Merseyside ICS develops overtime, things may change and it is 
important to keep local arrangements under review.

1.9 Wirral’s Place Based Partnership 
Page 60



1.10 Wirral’s Place-based Partnership will co-ordinate the planning and delivery of 
integrated services within Wirral, alongside communities. The Partnership will 
consider shared priorities with the wider system, how to bring different providers and 
sectors together, activity that would be most effectively delivered at scale. The 
Partnership will be accountable to the Cheshire and Merseyside Integrated Care 
Board.  Our ambition is from April 2022 Wirral will have a functioning Place-based 
Partnership and the Wirral Integrated Providers collective will be established. 
Throughout 2022 to 2023 partners will continue to build upon joint working 
arrangements.  

1.11 Governance Workshops

1.12 Following on from the Councillor governance workshop held on 14th September 
2021, a further workshop was facilitated by Hill Dickinson Solicitors on the 8th of 
October with Senior Officers from Wirral Council, Wirral University Teaching Hospital 
NHS Foundation Trust, Wirral Community Health and Care NHS Foundation Trust, 
Wirral CCG, Cheshire and Wirral Partnership NHS Foundation Trust, Primary Care, 
and Cheshire and Merseyside Health and Care Partnership to continue to develop 
Wirral’s Place-Based Partnership arrangements.

1.13 The workshop held on the 8th of October enabled further progress to be made for 
place-based partnership arrangements, demonstrating the commitment from all 
partners to work together to drive forward seamless integration and joint working, 
improving outcomes for residents and partners. One of the real strengths of place-
based partnership will be shared purpose and real ambitions to tackling health 
inequalities on the Borough in collaboration with partners.

1.14 Wirral’s Place-Based Partnership will drive a culture towards greater collaboration 
and joint working and build upon what partners have already worked hard to develop 
over the years. Governance arrangements will continue to develop over time, with 
the potential to develop into more formal arrangements as working relationships and 
trust increase.  

1.15 Effective partnerships are built by acting together and building collaborative 
arrangements.  Partnerships will be built on an ethos of equal partnership across 
sectors, organisations, professionals and communities.

1.16 Development Framework Self-Assessment

1.17 Cheshire and Merseyside System requires ‘Places’ to self-assess against each of 
the domains of their partnership maturity by 29th October 2021.  The Delivery and 
the Development Group attended by senior officers from Wirral’s Health and Care 
Partners will complete Wirral’s self-assessment together, and a further report can be 
brought to the Health and Wellbeing Board with the outcome of the assessment.

Page 61



1.18 Cheshire and Merseyside System will utilise the self-assessments submissions, plus 
the information from the System and Place meetings, to identify the targeted 
development plan for each Place.

2.0 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED

2.1 This report is not an options paper, however, provides an update on Wirral’s 
preferred governance arrangements to develop a Joint committee from April 2022 
with Cheshire and Merseyside Integrated Care Board to jointly drive forward and 
oversee local integration.

3.0 BACKGROUND INFORMATION

3.1 People who work in health and care are strongly motivated to make a difference to 
individual patients or clients, and population health. There is now a widespread 
understanding of the need to make connections and work in partnership with other 
agencies to address the wider social determinants of health. This approach has been 
demonstrated locally, for some time, as different professionals and organisations 
work together to address long-term challenges such as population changes, health 
inequalities and the management of complex, chronic conditions.

3.2 The pursuit of ‘integration’ is about ensuring that the right partnerships, policies, 
incentives and processes are in place to support practitioners and local 
organisations to work together to help people live healthier and more independent 
lives for longer.

3.3 Wirral’s CEO Integrated Care Partnership Development Group and Integrated Care 
Partnership Delivery Group continue to meet weekly to develop place-based 
partnership arrangements.  The Integrated Commissioning and Governance Project 
Board attended by Council and CCG Officers continues to meet fortnightly.  Council 
and Health Officers from Wirral continue to engage with Cheshire and Merseyside 
System leads throughout the development journey to be prepared from April 2022.

3.4 Providers in Wirral will also be part of at-scale Provider Collaboratives within 
Cheshire and Merseyside Integrated Care System. There are two system 
Collaboratives currently being developed 1. Acute and Specialist Provider 
Collaborative and 2. Community, Mental Health and Learning Disability Provider 
Collaborative.

3.5 Wirral Council and NHS Partners will work together to fulfil the high-level functions of 
Wirral’s Place-based Partnership:

 Defined decision-making functions for commissioning
 Health and care strategy and planning at place

Page 62



 Service planning
 Service delivery and transformation
 Population health management
 Connect support in the community
 Promote health and wellbeing
 Align management support
 Provider and professional collaboration in a place
 Leading activities where there is a need to work across a larger population to 

address issues
 Play a major role in the delivery of national expectations attached to NHS funding

3.6 Place Development framework for Cheshire and Merseyside

3.7 A place framework has been developed for completion in October 2021 to assess 
placed based partnerships ‘readiness’ for delegation from the ICB.

3.8 If the ICB considers a Place is not yet ready to take on its functions the ICB will limit 
the level of delegation and make arrangements for commissioning on behalf of place 
until the Place is able to move forward with a fully delegated approach.  Key areas to 
be developed at Place are the ability to collectively manage finance, take decisions 
about the shape of services and to be held accountable for delivery.

3.9 Where the ICB considers Place to be developing but is not yet ‘assured’ that Place 
meets many of the thresholds to operate its functions the ICB may provide for some 
delegation but operate some Place-based Partnership commissioning until the Place 
is able to move to a fully delegated approach.

3.10 Where the ICB considers that Place arrangements are well developed and is 
assured that Place meets ALL the thresholds / principles to operate its functions the 
ICB can provide for Place based partnership commissioning to move to a fully 
delegated approach.

3.11 Cheshire and Merseyside System require Wirral’s Place Health and Care Partners to 
self-assess against each of the domains of their partnership maturity by 29th 
October 2021 – as summarised below:

Clarity of purpose and visionAmbition & vision
Objectives and priorities

Page 63



Population health management to address health inequalities

Place-based leadership
Partnership working
Culture / OD / values and behaviours

Leadership & 
culture

Responding to the voice of our communities / public & patient 
engagement
Financial framework
Planning & delivery of integrated services
Enabler: Digital

Design & delivery

Enabler: Estates and assets
Mechanisms through which ICS functions are discharged to place and 
the accountability back to the ICS 
Terms of reference set out the mutual accountability arrangements for 
the Partnership
Operating model has clear lines of accountability and governance
Infrastructure and resources in place to enable the effective delivery of 
functions and priorities

Governance

Arrangements to assess and share risks and gains

3.12 Placed-Based Governance

3.13 The ICS Chief officer will ‘appoint’ place directors with the involvement of the local 
authority (joint process with stakeholder involvement).

3.14 Wirral’s existing infrastructure networks are well valued and will be included within 
Governance structures.

3.15 The terms of reference for the Place Partnership will set out the mutual 
accountability arrangements for the Partnership. Wirral will have clear partner 
collaboration governance at Place embedded with Place vision.

3.16 Wirral’s place-based partnership operating model developed will have clear lines of 
accountability and governance, with agreed terms of reference for the Partnership 
and associated groups, which is co-owned by all members. 

3.17 Infrastructure and resources will be developed to enable the effective delivery of 
functions and priorities with commitment from Place-Based Partnership Partners and 
ICS NHS Body to establish further as priorities continue to develop and/or there is a 
variation to the agreed functions of the Place-Based Partnership.

3.18 Partners regulatory and reporting requirements will be accounted for within the 
place-based partnership.

3.19 Clinical and care professional leadership will help drives priorities and ensures 
clinical involvement in design and decision making.

3.20 Neighbourhood level care models will be delivering to achieve planned outcomes.

Page 64



3.21 Key Next Steps

 Continue to develop Place-based Partnership Governance arrangements.
 ICB appointed ‘Place Lead’ with remit for integrated working.
 Shared vision and plan for reducing inequalities and improving outcomes of local 

people approved by HWB and underpinned by local population health and socio-
economic intelligence.

 Agreed Place-based Partnership development plan.
 Defined footprints within a Place (e.g. neighbourhoods) for delivery of integrated 

care.
 Programme of ongoing public and wider stakeholder engagement and Co-

Production at place.

4.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

4.1 There are no financial implications impacted by this report.  Place-based
partnerships will be backed by devolved funding, simplified accountability, and an 
approach to governance appropriate to local circumstances.

4.2 The ICB will take on the NHS commissioning functions of CCGs as well as some of 
NHS England’s commissioning functions. It will also be accountable for NHS spend 
and performance within the system.

4.3 Wirral’s Place-Based Partnership will commence contract model based on modelling 
of current and future population health and care needs with ICS NHS Body. 

4.4 The Place-Based Partnership proactively tackling financial challenges as a 
collective. Partners at place level will need to develop the associated agreements 
and governance between Place-Based Partnership partners as to how finance flows 
between organisations to support the delivery of priorities and functions.

4.5 Partners will work together to develop a joint financial plan to demonstrate the impact 
made on health outcomes because of the investments made.

5.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

5.1 The government has brought forward proposals in its Health and Care Bill to 
implement statutory arrangements for ICSs with two components. The first 
component is the Integrated Care Partnership, or ICP: a broad alliance of 
organisations and representatives concerned with improving the care, health and 
wellbeing of the population, jointly convened by local authorities and the NHS. The 
second component is a statutory body, the Integrated Care Board, or ICB: the ICB 
will be responsible for the commissioning of healthcare services in that ICS area, 
bringing the NHS together locally to improve population health and care.

Page 65



5.2 The Bill will allow for the establishment of Integrated Care Boards and Integrated 
Care Partnerships across England. This will be done at the same time as abolishing 
Clinical Commissioning Groups (CCGs). NHS England will agree ICBs’ constitutions 
and will hold them to account for delivery.

5.3 The Health and Care Bill aims to support Government in doing the following:
 Promoting local collaboration.
 Reforming the NHS Provider Selection Regime.
 Improving accountability and enhancing public confidence in the health and care 
 system; and 
 Delivering a range of targeted measures to support people at all stages of life.

5.4 The ICB will be a key mechanism to secure collaboration within the NHS, and at the 
interface of health and local government. It will hold the NHS bodies within the ICB’s 
area to account and ensure the NHS is an effective and relevant partner in the place 
it operates. 

5.5 The legislation does not seek to define a ‘place’ as something within a system but 
recognising the importance of ‘places’ in making integration happen, it is designed to 
ensure that place-based arrangements are as effective and collaborative as possible 
and are supported by co-operation at system level.

5.6 At the time of producing this report in October the Health and Care Bill was still at 
committee stage and has not yet been formally approved.

6.0 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: STAFFING, ICT AND ASSETS

6.1 The CCG staff in Wirral are directly affected by the Health and Care Bill.  There are 
staffing implications in relation to developing the integrated commissioning team in 
Wirral.  The Council will work in partnership NHS Wirral CCG to ensure that the new 
integrated commissioning team is supported throughout the transition from 2021 into 
April 2022 when the ICB will replace the previous CCG organisations.

6.2 Staff currently employed by CCGs will transfer to ICBs, and NHS England has made 
an employment commitment to staff to provide stability and minimise uncertainty.

6.3 Joint workforce development initiatives evolved by the Place-based Partnership will 
encourage diversity of leadership, support continuity and sustainability.

6.4 Places will be expected to develop an integrated approach to commissioning 
between health and local authority (such as shared posts, joint teams and pooled 
budgets) to underpin and support the work of the Place-based Partnership

Page 66



6.5 Wirral’s Place-based integrated care partnership will improve outcomes and tackle 
inequalities, to enhance productivity and make best use of resources and to 
strengthen local communities.

7.0 RELEVANT RISKS 

7.1 The system changes outlined in this report will have risk management frameworks 
as part of their implementation.  

7.2 The Council will mitigate risks through working closely with partners to gain insight 
into all areas of risks to enable mitigating actions to be put in place.

7.3 Arrangements to assess and share risks and gains across providers will be fully 
established and supported by transparency around resource availability and 
allocation within the place.

8.0 ENGAGEMENT/CONSULTATION 

8.1 Engagement will need to take place in regard to the system changes outlined in this 
report.  Local engagement is central to determining the views of residents around the 
implementation of the Long-Term Plan, Healthy Wirral and other system 
developments.  

8.2 The insight of local people and service users is vital in commissioning the right 
services to achieve the best outcomes for patients.  Neighbourhood areas are the 
fundamental platform for engagement working with residents and providers of each 
neighbourhood. Design, delivery and improvement are shaped through co-production 
with communities.

8.3 Integrated Care Partnership Delivery Group have developed a communication plan 
to ensure that all key stakeholders are engaged and informed over the course of the 
development journey.

8.4 Resident’s voice will be embedded within neighbourhood and place arrangements 
driving priorities and ensuring public voice involvement in design and decision 
making. The Council and place partners will utilise existing networks for effective 
reach into communities.

8.5 Wirral’s Place-Based Partnership will involve following stakeholders and continue to 
develop membership overtime.
 Primary care provider leadership, represented by PCN clinical directors or other 

relevant primary care leaders
 Providers of acute, community and mental health services, including 
 Representatives of provider collaboratives 
 People who use care and support services and their representatives 

Page 67



 Healthwatch
 Local Authority
 Elected members
 Social care providers
 Voluntary, community and social enterprise sector (VCSE)
 ICB

8.6 The place-based partnership will have VCFSE sector representation, which is 
embedded in all elements of population planning, decision making and delivery.  
VCFSE sector intelligence and insight will be collated, including wider community 
feedback, to ensure the Placed Based Partnership can hear from critical voices 
within different communities, escalate priority issues, and take action on these 
issues.

9.0 EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS

9.1 An Equality Impact Assessment has been completed in May 2021.  An Equality 
Impact Assessment is a tool to help public services identify steps they can take to 
ensure equality for anyone who might be affected by a particular policy, decision or 
activity.

9.2 Wirral Council has a legal requirement to make sure its policies, and the way it 
carries out its work, do not discriminate against anyone.  Plans will be underpinned 
by local population health and socio-economic intelligence.  The Council will work in 
partnership with local and regional partners to develop place-based partnership 
arrangements necessary to deliver improved outcomes in population health by 
tackling health inequality.  

10.0 ENVIRONMENT AND CLIMATE IMPLICATIONS

10.1 There are no environmental or climate implications as a result of this report.  

10.2 Wirral Council is committed to carrying out its work in an environmentally responsible 
manner, and these principles will guide the development of the Integrated Care 
Partnership in Wirral.

11.0 COMMUNITY WEALTH IMPLICATIONS

11.1 The success of the health and care system in meeting the health and care needs of 
the community depends on many factors, but the response to the Covid-19 
pandemic clearly demonstrates the importance of joined up approaches to strategy 
development and decision-making across the system and communities. During the 
pandemic, we saw the brilliance and dedication of the health and care workforce 
enhanced by the strengthening of existing, and development of new, partnerships. 
The pandemic also highlighted the critical dependencies in health and care, including 

Page 68



areas which are sometimes ‘less high profile’ but equally as important, such as 
community and voluntary services, the role of unpaid carers, employers and 
employment support services.

11.2 The case for Community Wealth Building is stronger than ever, with the pandemic 
having a clear and significant impact on our residents, communities, and businesses. 
It is vital that everything we do at the Council contributes to the recovery and the 
development of a resilient and inclusive economy for Wirral.

11.3 Community Wealth Building in Wirral focusses on partnerships and collaboration, 
both within the Council and with external partners and stakeholders, including 
residents. The Council will work together with partners and residents to develop the 
place-based partnership arrangements in Wirral that meet the needs of the 
population, with a focus on reducing health inequalities.

REPORT AUTHOR: Graham Hodkinson, Director of Adult Social Care and Health

Telephone: 0151 666 3650
Email: grahamhodkinson@wirral.gov.uk

APPENDICES
There are no additional appendices attached to this report.

BACKGROUND PAPERS

 NHS Five Year Forward View (2014), https://www.england.nhs.uk/five-year-forward-
view/ 

 NHS Planning Guidance (2017), https://www.england.nhs.uk/publication/delivering-the-
forward-view-nhs-planning-guidance-201617-202021/

 NHS Long Term Plan (2019), https://www.longtermplan.nhs.uk/ 

 Designing Integrated Care Systems (ICSs) in England (2019), 
https://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/06/designing-integrated-care-
systems-in-england.pdf

 Integrating Care: Next steps to building strong and effective integrated care systems 
across England (2020), https://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-
content/uploads/2020/11/261120-item-5-integrating-care-next-steps-for-integrated-care-
systems.pdf 

 Integration and Innovation: working together to improve health and social care for all, 
White Paper (2021), https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/working-together-to-
improve-health-and-social-care-for-all.   

Page 69

https://www.england.nhs.uk/five-year-forward-view/
https://www.england.nhs.uk/five-year-forward-view/
https://www.england.nhs.uk/publication/delivering-the-forward-view-nhs-planning-guidance-201617-202021/
https://www.england.nhs.uk/publication/delivering-the-forward-view-nhs-planning-guidance-201617-202021/
https://www.longtermplan.nhs.uk/
https://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/06/designing-integrated-care-systems-in-england.pdf
https://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/06/designing-integrated-care-systems-in-england.pdf
https://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2020/11/261120-item-5-integrating-care-next-steps-for-integrated-care-systems.pdf
https://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2020/11/261120-item-5-integrating-care-next-steps-for-integrated-care-systems.pdf
https://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2020/11/261120-item-5-integrating-care-next-steps-for-integrated-care-systems.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/working-together-to-improve-health-and-social-care-for-all
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/working-together-to-improve-health-and-social-care-for-all


 Legislating for Integrated Care Systems: five recommendations to Government and 
Parliament (2021), https://www.england.nhs.uk/publication/legislating-for-integrated-
care-systems-five-recommendations-to-government-and-parliament/

 NHS Planning Guidance (2021), https://www.england.nhs.uk/operational-planning-and-
contracting/ 

 The Queen’s Speech 2021 – Background Briefing Notes, 
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachmen
t_data/file/985029/Queen_s_Speech_2021_-_Background_Briefing_Notes..pdf  

 Integrated Care Systems: Design Framework and Guidance on the Employment 
Commitment (2021), https://www.england.nhs.uk/publication/integrated-care-systems-
design-framework/

 NHS People Plan 2020/2021,  https://www.england.nhs.uk/ournhspeople/

 Thriving Places - September 2021 – Found at Thriving Places: guidance on the 
development of place-based partnerships as part of statutory integrated care systems

 Building strong integrated care systems everywhere ICS implementation guidance on 
effective clinical and care professional leadership - September 2021 - Found at Building 
strong integrated care systems everywhere: ICS implementation guidance on effective 
clinical and care professional leadership

 Building strong integrated care systems everywhere ICS implementation guidance on 
partnerships with the voluntary, community and social enterprise sector- September 
2021 - Found at Building strong integrated care systems everywhere: ICS 
implementation guidance on partnerships with the voluntary, community and social 
enterprise sector

 Health and Care Bill (2021) https://bills.parliament.uk/bills/3022

SUBJECT HISTORY (last 3 years)

Council Meeting Date
Previous reports presented to Health and Wellbeing 
Board:

 Health & Wellbeing Board Refreshed Purpose
Integrated Care System Project Update

 Integrated Care System and Integrated Care 
Partnership Developments

 Integrated Care System and Integrated Care 
Partnership Developments

Previous reports presented to Adult Social Care and 
Public Health Committee:

31st March 2021
16th June 2021
20th July 2021
29th September 

Page 70

https://www.england.nhs.uk/publication/legislating-for-integrated-care-systems-five-recommendations-to-government-and-parliament/
https://www.england.nhs.uk/publication/legislating-for-integrated-care-systems-five-recommendations-to-government-and-parliament/
https://www.england.nhs.uk/operational-planning-and-contracting/
https://www.england.nhs.uk/operational-planning-and-contracting/
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/985029/Queen_s_Speech_2021_-_Background_Briefing_Notes..pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/985029/Queen_s_Speech_2021_-_Background_Briefing_Notes..pdf
https://www.england.nhs.uk/publication/integrated-care-systems-design-framework/
https://www.england.nhs.uk/publication/integrated-care-systems-design-framework/
https://www.england.nhs.uk/ournhspeople/
https://www.england.nhs.uk/publication/integrated-care-systems-guidance/
https://www.england.nhs.uk/publication/integrated-care-systems-guidance/
https://www.england.nhs.uk/publication/integrated-care-systems-guidance/
https://www.england.nhs.uk/publication/integrated-care-systems-guidance/
https://www.england.nhs.uk/publication/integrated-care-systems-guidance/
https://www.england.nhs.uk/publication/integrated-care-systems-guidance/
https://www.england.nhs.uk/publication/integrated-care-systems-guidance/
https://www.england.nhs.uk/publication/integrated-care-systems-guidance/
https://bills.parliament.uk/bills/3022


 Strategic Developments in the NHS
 Proposals for Integrated Care Partnership
 Integrated Care System and Integrated Care 

Partnership Developments
 Integrated Care System and Integrated Care 

Partnership Developments

Previous reports presented to Partnerships Committee
 Strategic Developments in the NHS
 Strategic Developments in the NHS
 Strategic Developments in the NHS
 Integrated Care System and Integrated Care 

Partnership Developments

2nd March 2021
7th June 2021
29th July 2021
8th September 2021
13th October 2021

9th November 2020
13th January 2021
29th June 2021
28th September 2021

Page 71



This page is intentionally left blank



HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD

WEDNESDAY 3 NOVEMBER 21

REPORT TITLE: HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD WORK 
PROGRAMME

REPORT OF: DIRECTOR OF LAW & GOVERNANCE

REPORT SUMMARY

The report provides the Health and Wellbeing Board with its current work programme and 
affords the Board the opportunity to propose additional items for consideration at future 
meetings.

It is envisaged that the work programme will be formed from a combination of standing 
items, requested officer reports and items for consideration from partners. This report 
provides the Board with an opportunity to plan and regularly review its work across the 
municipal year. The work programme for the Health and Wellbeing Board is attached as 
Appendix 1 to this report.

RECOMMENDATION
 
The Health and Wellbeing Board is recommended to: 

(1)  note and comment on the proposed Health and Wellbeing Board work programme 
for the of the 2021/22 municipal year.

(2) suggest further items to be included on the work programme for consideration at 
future meetings.

(3) agree its standing items for the 2021/22 municipal year.

Page 73

Agenda Item 9



SUPPORTING INFORMATION

1.0 REASON/S FOR RECOMMENDATION/S

1.1 To ensure Members of the Health and Wellbeing Board have the opportunity to 
contribute to the delivery of the annual work programme.

2.0 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED

2.1 A number of workplan formats were explored, with the current framework open to 
amendment to match the requirements of the Board.

3.0 BACKGROUND INFORMATION

3.1 3.1 The work programme should align with the priorities of the Council and its 
partners. The programme will be informed by: 

            The Council Plan 
 The Council’s transformation programme  
            Service performance information 
 Risk management information 
 Public or service user feedback 
            Referrals from partner organisations
 Referrals from other Committees

Terms of Reference 
 
           The principal role of the Health and Wellbeing Board is to discharge functions 

pursuant to sections 195 and 196 of the Health and Social Care Act 2012. The 
Health and Wellbeing Board will not be responsible for directly commissioning 
services, but will provide oversight, strategic direction and coordination of the 
following activities:

a) To develop a shared understanding of the needs of the local community 
through the development of an agreed Joint Strategic Needs 
Assessment

b) To seek to meet those needs through leading on the ongoing 
development of a Health & Wellbeing Strategy

c) To provide a local governance structure for local planning and 
accountability of health and wellbeing related outcomes

d) To work with HealthWatch in Wirral to ensure appropriate engagement 
and involvement within existing patient and service user involvement 
groups takes place

e) To drive a collaborative approach to commissioning of improved health 
and care services which improve the health and wellbeing of local 
people

f) To consider and take advantage of opportunities to more closely 
integrate health and social care services in commissioning and provision

Page 74



g) To review the financial and organisational implications of joint and 
integrated working across health and social care services, ensuring that 
performance and quality standards of health and social care services are 
met, and represent value for money across the whole system

h) To establish a key forum for local democratic accountability relating to 
commissioning against agreed health outcomes

i) To develop and update the Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment (PNA)
j) To ensure the Better Care Fund plan is monitored regarding its progress 

and performance and ensure the health and social care partners 
effectively plan regarding the implications of this work.

4.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

4.1 This report is for information and planning purposes only, therefore there are no 
direct financial implication arising. However, there may be financial implications 
arising as a result of work programme items.

5.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

5.1 There are no direct legal implications arising from this report. However, there may be 
legal implications arising as a result of work programme items.

6.0 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: STAFFING, ICT AND ASSETS

6.1 There are no direct implications to Staffing, ICT or Assets.

7.0 RELEVANT RISKS 

7.1 The Board’s ability to undertake its responsibility may be compromised if it does not 
have the opportunity to plan and regularly review its work across the municipal year.

8.0 ENGAGEMENT/CONSULTATION 

8.1 Not applicable.

9.0 EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS

9.1 Wirral Council has a legal requirement to make sure its policies, and the way it 
carries out its work, do not discriminate against anyone. An Equality Impact 
Assessment is a tool to help council services identify steps they can take to ensure 
equality for anyone who might be affected by a particular policy, decision or activity.

This report is for information to Members and there are no direct equality
implications.

10.0 ENVIRONMENT AND CLIMATE IMPLICATIONS

10.1 This report is for information to Members and there are no direct environment and 
climate implications.

Page 75



11.0 COMMUNITY WEALTH IMPLICATIONS

11.1 There are no direct implications arising from this report. 

REPORT AUTHOR: Victoria Simpson 
telephone:  0151 691 8271 
email:  danielsharples@wirral.gov.uk 

APPENDICES

Appendix 1: Health and Wellbeing Board Work Programme

BACKGROUND PAPERS
Wirral Council Constitution
The Health and Social Care Act 2012

SUBJECT HISTORY (last 3 years)
Council Meeting Date

Page 76

mailto:danielsharples@wirral.gov.uk


Health and Wellbeing Board Work Programme
Approximate timescale Report Lead Officer

Restoration and 
Development of NHS 
Services after Covid-19

Paula Cowan/Simon Banks

Integrated Care System 
Update

Graham Hodkinson

Tackling Health Inequalities 
through Physical and Social 
Regeneration

Rachael Musgrave

ADDER Project Elspeth Anwar

Healthwatch Karen Prior 

15 December 2021

BCF Annual Return Bridget Hollingsworth

Integrated Care System 
Update

Graham Hodkinson9 February 2022

Sir Michael Marmot 
Presentation

Julie Webster

Wirral Pharmaceutical 
Needs Assessment 2022-
2025 First Draft

John Highton23 March 2022

Integrated Care System 
Update

Graham Hodkinson

FUTURE ITEMS TO BE SCHEDULED
Item Lead Officer
Leisure Strategy Nicki Butterworth
CWP Community Services Dr Faouzi Alam
CHAMPS Julie Webster
2019/20 Council Lifelong Learning Service 
Adult Education Delivery

Simone White

Early Years and Health Simone White
Young People with Special Educational 
Needs

Simone White

Page 77



STANDING ITEMS AND MONITORING REPORTS  
Item Reporting Frequency  Lead Officer  
Healthwatch Quarterly Karen Prior

WORK PROGRAMME ACTIVITIES OUTSIDE COMMITTEE

Report Lead Officer Timescale
Community, Voluntary and 
Faith Sector Working Group 

Nikki Jones/Rachael 
Musgrave

Ongoing

Community, Voluntary and 
Faith Sector Reference 
Group

Rachael Musgrave Ongoing

Page 78


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	5 DEVELOPING A WIRRAL HEALTH AND WELLBEING STRATEGY WITH SUPPORT FROM THE MARMOT COMMUNITY PROGRAMME
	6 COMMUNITY SAFETY STRATEGY 2021-2026
	180_CommunitySafetyStrategy_v9

	7 Health and Employment
	INW Presentation (Wirral Council) - COMPLETE

	8 Integrated Care System Project Update
	9 Work Programme
	Health and Wellbeing Board Work Programme


